A

CITY oF OAKLAND

Cultural Affairs Commission
Special Meeting Agenda
Thursday, June 13, 2024

6:00 — 8:30 PM

Please note that all meetings of the Cultural Affairs Commission will be conducted in person at:

Oakland City Hall
1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Hearing Room 2 (First Floor),
Oakland, CA 94612

How to Make a Comment:

There are two opportunities for the public to address the Cultural Affairs Commission and City staff. The first
opportunity is during the "Public Comment" period. The second opportunity is during the "Open Forum" period.
Dialogue during the meeting with Commissioners, City staff, or its guest speakers is not permitted outside of the
two comment periods. Zoom participation is for viewing only. Comments will no longer be accepted via
Zoom or telephone.

RE: ZOOM PARTICIPATION + COMMENT PERIODS

All Cultural Affairs Commission meetings will be conducted in person. The Cultural Affairs Commission is no
longer accepting public comments via Zoom or telephone. Therefore, live comments must be made in-person.
You can choose to submit a written comment by 5:00 PM BEFORE the meeting starts

to riglesias@oaklandca.org . Any comments received via email during the duration or after the meeting may
not be entered into public record but will be shared with the Commission and City staff later.

Please click the link below to join the webinar:

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82404181035

Or One tap mobile :
+14086380968,,82404181035# US (San Jose)
+16694449171,,82404181035# US

Or Telephone:
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):
+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose)
+1 669 444 9171 US
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Webinar ID: 824 0418 1035
International numbers available: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kbdoh7LVzq

Page 1 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda


mailto:riglesias@oaklandca.org

AV NES
=
=4

CITY oF OAKLAND

Cultural Affairs Commission

Special Meeting Agenda
Thursday, June 13, 2024
6:00 — 8:30 PM
AGENDA

Roll Call/Call to Order
1. Welcome
2. Land Acknowledgement + Official City of Oakland Love Life Acknowledgement
3. Approval of the April 2024 Meeting Minutes
4. Cultural Affairs Division Manager’s Update
5. Cultural Affairs Commission Chair’s Update
6. Informational Presentation: Developing Oakland’s Film Industry - Greg Minor, Special Activity

Permits Division, Economic & Workforce Development Department
7. Public Comment
8. FY24-25 Budget Discussion
9. Open Forum
10. Announcements & Acknowledgements

11. Adjournment

Next regular meeting: Monday July 22, 2024 at 5:30 — 8:30 PM
at Oakland City Hall
1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Hearing Room 1 (First Floor),
Oakland, CA 94612

Oakland Cultural Affairs Division of the Economic & Workforce Development Department
1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 9 fl. Oakland, CA 94612
www.oaklandculturalarts.org

Page 2 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda


http://www.oaklandculturalarts.org/

This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request disability-related accommodations or to request American Sign
Language (ASL), Cantonese, Mandarin, or Spanish language interpreter, please email RBedoya@oaklandca.gov or call (510)
238-2136 Or 711 (for Relay Service) at least five (5) business days before the meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented
products to this meeting as a courtesy to attendees with chemical sensitivities.

Esta reunion es accesible para sillas de ruedas. Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir
un intérprete de en espaiiol, Cantones, mandarin o de lenguaje de sefias (ASL) por favor envié€ un correo electronico a
NBalram@oaklandca.gov o llame al (510) 238-4949 o al 711 para servicio de retransmision (Relay service) por lo menos
cinco dias habiles antes de la reunién. Se le pide de favor que no use perfumes a esta reunidon como cortesia para los que
tienen sensibilidad a los productos quimicos. Gracias.

G5 A i AR - BEEEEENRM, F5E, IS, BRI, s e n 108 TIE
K& NBalram@oaklandca.gov 878 (510) 238-49498%, 711 (FERHELEARS), S aBRESREm - 2M&EY
AEEH LA Bl oy UK

Pia diém t6 chuc cugc hop c6 dudng danh riéng cho xe lan. bé yéu cAu céac phuong ti¢n hd tro phuc vu nguoi khuyét tat hoac
yéu cau thong dich vién ASL, tiéng Quang Déng, tiéng Quan Thoai hodc tiéng Tay Ban Nha, vui 1ong giri email dén dia chi
NBalram@oaklandca.gov hoidc goi dén sb (510) 238-4949 hodc 711 (véi Dich vu Tiép 4m) it nhit ndm (5) ngay lam viée
trude khi cudc hop dién ra.Vui long khong str dung céc san phim c6 mui thom khi tham gia cudc hop nay nhu mot phép lich
su ddi véi nhiing nguodi tham du nhay cam ddi véi cac chit hoa hoc.

Cultural Affairs Division - Economic & Workforce Development Department
Cultural Affairs Commission Contact — Roberto Bedoya, Cultural Affairs Manager
Phone: (510) 238-2136

Recorded Agenda: (510) 238-2386

Telecommunications Relay Service: 711

Page 3 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda


mailto:NBalram@oaklandca.gov
mailto:NBalram@oaklandca.gov
mailto:NBalram@oaklandca.gov

CITY oF OAKLAND

Cultural Affairs Commission
Regular Meeting Minutes
Monday, April 15, 2024
5:31-8:36 PM

Members in Attendance: Vanessa Whang (Chair), Kev Choice (Vice Chair), Olaywa K. Austin, Ebhodaghe
Esoimeme, Michelle Mush Lee, llana Lipsett, Mandolyn “Mystic” Ludlum, Candi Martinez, Jim Santi Owen
Members Absent: Jennifer Easton (excused)

Staff in Attendance: Roberto Bedoya, Raquel Iglesias, Kristen Zaremba, Josie de Mira

Guest Speakers: Sabereh Kashi (2022-2023 Cultural Strategist-in-Government), Alisa Burton (Head Start Program
Supervisor, Human Services Department,)

Roll Call/Call to Order

1. Welcome
The meeting was called to order by Chair Whang at 5:31 PM.

2. Welcome to new Commissioners
Chair Whang invited new commissioners to introduce themselves.

Commissioners Ludlum, Austin, Martinez, and Esoimeme shared their enthusiasm for joining the
commission, their connections to the Oakland arts and culture community, and reasons for serving.

3. Land Acknowledgement + Official City of Oakland Love Acknowledgement — 5:38pm
Chair Whang shared remarks about the purpose of the Land Acknowledgement.
Vice Chair Choice read the City’s Love Acknowledgement.

Commissioner Choice welcomed the new commissioners and shared how the Love Acknowledgment was
developed through the Cultural Strategists-in-Government program.

4. Action Item 1: Approval of Minutes from September 25, 2023
Motion to approve the meeting minutes from September 25, 2023 made by Vice Chair Choice; seconded by
Commissioner Santi Owen.

Choice AYE
Easton Absent
Lee AYE
Lipsett AYE
Santi Owen AYE
Whang AYE

Austin Abstain

Page 4 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda


https://www.oaklandca.gov/topics/oaklandlovelife

Esoimeme Abstain
Ludlum Abstain
Martinez  Abstain

The motion passed.

Artist Spotlight

Chair Whang welcomed Commissioner Lee, the artist spotlighted for the meeting who performed her poem
“Stay.” Commissioner Michelle “Mush” Lee is the Executive Director of Youth Speaks and is a poet, narrative
strategist, and pioneer of spoken word pedagogy. A Harvard University Project Zero Fellow, Lee is frequently
a featured speaker on the intersection of emergent cultures, racial justice, and solidarity movements, and
women of color in leadership. Her talks and writings have been featured on Vogue, HBO, PBS, AfroPop,
Summit Series, Social Venture Network, National Conference on Race and Ethnicity in Higher Education
(NCORE), and the Berkeley Communications Conference. Lee has shared the stage with powerhouses like
Natalie Baszile, Jeff Chang, David Banner, Hope Solo and Harrison Ford. Her writings have been
commissioned by the University of California, Berkeley’s Othering and Belonging Institute, Stop AAPI Hate,
and See Us Unite campaigns. Lee has also been published in All the Women in My Family Sing, an anthology
of essays by women of color at the dawn of the twenty-first century.

Vice Chair Choice shared that if artists are interested in being featured in the Artist Spotlight to reach out to
him.

Cultural Affairs Division Manager’s Update
Chair Whang welcomed Cultural Affairs Manager Roberto Bedoya to share the manager’s update.

Bedoya thanked the current and new commissioners for being visible and foregrounding the work of the
Division as well as the Cultural Affairs staff.

Budget
Bedoya shared that the City is facing a $160M shortfall by June 30'" and has been asked to plan for a 20% cut

to the Division budget. He explained to the new commissioners that most of the funding for the Division
comes from the General Purpose Fund and the Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) Fund. Bedoya shared that
after the last budget shortfall, the Division’s budget lost approximately $1M and had a little over S1M
remaining to disburse. As a result, the Division had to eliminate two grant program categories. Currently,
there are two active programs — Organizational Assistance and Festival Culture. He shared that given the
current budget shortfalls the Division will need to consider how to sustain these two programs.

Staffing
Bedoya shared that the Division has two staff vacancies — one focused on supporting the Division,

Commission, and partnerships; and one supporting the grants programs. He shared that hiring for those
positions has been frozen at least through June 30. The Division will not have an update on the status of
those positions until the Mayor’s budget is presented in May. Bedoya shared that he was able to hire
Adriana Grifid through a Professional Services Agreement as a contract position to provide support.

Life Enrichment Committee

Bedoya noted that the Division is scheduled to present recommendations for Networks of Care grants and
the annual report on Division activities to the Life Enrichment Committee on May 14. He welcomed
Commissioners to attend.

Page 5 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Field Convenings

Bedoya shared that he was invited to attend the White House and National Endowment for the Arts
convening, “Healing, Bridging & Thriving” in Washington D.C., which focused on the role of arts and culture
in our communities. United States Artists had also convened funders to discuss supports for individual
artists.

Bedoya shared that he would be speaking at the Othering and Belonging conference and would be hosting
the Kresge Foundation for a site visit in Oakland.

Discussion
Bedoya opened it up for questions.

Vice Chair Choice thanked Bedoya for his presence nationally and asked to clarify where the Division was in
terms of staffing. Bedoya responded that the Division is down by two full time staff and a .5 part-time
position but that the part-time position was being eliminated because of budget constraints. He shared that
there will be no action on the two full time staff positions until June 30 but that the Division was in the
interview process with one and would reopen the process after July 1 if the adopted budget made that
possible.

Vice Chair Choice confirmed that the City budget shortfall was S160M and asked what the impact on the
Division would be. Bedoya shared that he had two budget scenarios considering a 10% and 20% cut.

Vice Chair Choice asked about grant programs serving individual artists and project support. Bedoya clarified
that those programs had to be put on hold last year and was not sure when those could be brought back.
Bedoya shared that support for historically identified festivals comes from TOT funds and are Council
directed.

Commissioner Esoimeme asked if there was an opportunity to advocate for the importance of the arts to the
Mayor. Chair Whang responded that advocacy is part of the Commission’s responsibilities, and that staff
can’t participate. Chair Whang shared that there would be an opportunity to advocate to the City Council
Budget Committee once the Mayor releases the budget. Commissioner Lee shared that past advocacy
efforts were successful for the Division and emphasized the importance of ensuring councilmembers had
arts and culture included in their budget priorities. She encouraged the community to organize as well.

Commissioner Lee asked if there was the potential to expand support for more festivals than the current 11
or provide larger grants to fewer festivals. Bedoya clarified that the 11 festivals receive permit waivers that
are council directed. He shared that he would bring different funding scenarios to the commission.

Commissioner Santi Owen asked what the process was for councilmembers to approve the final budget.
Chair Whang responded that the Council President has a budget subcommittee, but will have public
meetings in which all councilmembers will weigh in. Commissioner Santi Owen shared that public meetings
and town halls are good opportunities for advocacy.

Program Update: Cultural Funding Grants Program Update

Cultural Funding Coordinator Raquel Iglesias clarified that the Cultural Funding Program (CFP) has a festival
grants program, which gave 30 grants totaling approximately $450,000. She clarified that the festival permit
program discussed earlier is a separate support stream.

Page 6 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Iglesias shared that approximately $700,000 - $800,000 in general operating support was given through
Organizational Assistance. She clarified that because of budget cuts, the Organizational Project and
Individual Artist grant programs were suspended. Iglesias shared that the Division no longer has the
insurance policy that covered the Individual Artist grant program, which also led to the suspension of the
program. Iglesias noted that the 30 Organizational Assistance grants are two-year grants which means that
organizations don’t need to reapply in year two. The amounts are not confirmed but will likely be between
$15,000 and $35,000. The 30 festival grants given through the Neighborhood Voices program range from
$6,000 to $20,0000.

Iglesias shared that the Division is processing 60 grant contracts and that it was taking up to three months to
get funds out. As a result, to provide enough time for grants to be processed going forward, the program will
not fund many festivals taking place between July and December 2024.

Iglesias noted that the Division was able to award $150,000 from rollover TOT funds that had not been spent
in 2022-2023. Funds were used to support teaching artists through the Networks of Care program. Grants of
$10,000 were awarded to organizations serving Oakland youth to support teaching artists salaries and/or
professional development. She noted that some applicants, most probably because of organizational
capacity, were not in good standing with the State Attorney General's Registry of Charitable Trusts and
therefore were ineligible; however, 15 organizations were being recommended for funding.

Iglesias noted that the Program Analyst Il position had received over 100 applications and that 34 candidates
met the criteria. Those candidates were being reviewed by external reviewers and the highest scoring
applications would move onto the interview stage if the hiring freeze is lifted for this position??.

Chair Whang opened the discussion for questions. Commissioner Esoimeme asked if applicants that had
been ineligible for the Networks of Care grants had been notified that they weren’t in good standing and
Iglesias confirmed that they had.

Commissioner Lipsett asked if there was an opportunity to share information on how to get into good
standing with the AG registry or how to get insurance. Iglesias responded that the Division can do that but
doesn't have funds to support those projects regardless.

Commissioner Esoimeme asked how much insurance costs and Iglesias confirmed that it is a steep cost to
meet City requirements.

Commissioner Santi Owen thanked staff for finding resources for teaching artists given that CAD had to cut
funds for the program. He also encouraged others to participate in grant panels.

Commissioner Whang pointed out that Iglesias had been covering the responsibilities of two roles for the
past three years.

Program Update: Public Art Program Update
Public Art Coordinator Kristen Zaremba introduced herself and new Assistant Public Art Coordinator staff
member, Josie de Mira.

Zaremba shared that the Public Art Program (PAP) is funded through the 1.5% for Art ordinance tied to
capital improvement projects. The PA Program also facilitates requirements for private development
projects that come through the Planning Department, as well as privately funded projects proposed for
public property, which are under the purview of the Public Art Advisory Committee (PAAC). Zaremba shared

Page 7 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



that the PAAC is a nine-member committee that reviews those projects and supports projects on City
property. Zaremba shared that there are vacancies on the PAAC.

Zaremba shared that the PAP will refresh recruitment for its pre-qualified artist pool this summer and will
share details with the Commission. She noted that the PAP was also working on a salon with the affordable
housing community on how to incorporate public art into developments.

Chair Whang asked Zaremba how many artists had been added to the pre-qualified pool through the
Cultural Strategists-in-Government (CSIG) for Public Art Program. Zaremba shared that 75 artists who
completed the series of public art workshops devised through the CSIG program would be added to the pre-
qualified artist pool.

Vice Chair Choice asked how council members fund public art projects. Zaremba shared that it is often on a
case-by-case basis when they set aside money for special projects as part of the adopted budget, and that
council members currently have funds earmarked for murals in their districts. She shared that as the PAP
now has one additional staff person they can facilitate.

Zaremba shared that the PAAC regularly meets on the first Monday of each month.

Partnerships Update

Bedoya shared that a CAD funding partnership had received $2.8M from the Surdna Foundation over a year
ago through the Oakland Fund for Public Innovation for the Just City Cultural Fund. He shared that three
Oakland organizations were receiving multi-year grants for their narrative change work.

Bedoya shared that the Cultural Strategists-in-Government had been supported by a $500,000 grant from
the California Arts Council administered by The San Francisco Foundation. He thanked Chair Whang for her
assistance on the report focused on the second round of the program which would be shared soon. Bedoya
shared information on the latest cohort of Cultural Strategists and their city partners.

Chair Whang opened the discussion for questions.

Commissioner Lee asked if this was the end of the second year and where funding came from for the
cohorts. Bedoya clarified that the first CSIG cohort was supported by City general funds, the second year was
supported by a $900,000 grant from the Mellon Foundation, and the third year was supported by the
$500,000 grant from California Arts Council funding.

Commissioner Lee noted that the CSIG program pairs artists with city agencies and that the Division is a
national leader for this program. Chair Whang shared that Commissioner Lee was in the inaugural cohort.

Public Comment
No comment was made by the public

Informational Presentations
Sabereh Kashi & Alisa Burton, Head Start

Chair Whang invited artist, Sabereh Kashi and her city partner, Alisa Burton of Head Start to share their
experience participating in the Cultural Strategists-in-Government (CSIG) Program. Whang explained that
the program pairs Oakland creatives with city agencies to make government programs more transparent
and accessible to communities.

Page 8 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Burton shared background on Head Start, which is a comprehensive child development program. Kashi
shared how she used her background as a filmmaker to raise awareness of the program via social media.
Kashi shared some of the images and videos she had produced. Both Burton and Kashi expressed their
enthusiasm for the CSIG program, their collaboration, and hopes to sustain the work.

Chair Whang thanked both presenters and opened the discussion for questions and comments.
Commissioners Esoimeme, Ludlum, and Austin thanked the presenters for their work. Vice Chair Choice
shared his experience as a Cultural Strategist and noted that the CSIG program could support transitions or
hand-offs between Cultural Strategist cohorts to ensure continuity.

Bedoya spoke to the future of the CSIG program and shared that funds are secured for the current year and

that the Division is looking for additional resources for future cohorts. He shared that he is meeting with
other city departments who could use community engagement funds to engage Cultural Strategists.

Henry J. Kaiser Community Advisory Board

Chair Whang invited Vice Chair Choice to report out on his participation on the Henry J. Kaiser Convention
Center Community Advisory Board. Vice Chair Choice explained that the goal of the advisory board is to
enforce community benefit agreements Orton (the developer) agreed to when given the contract. He shared
there was uncertainty with the use of the space but noted that the space was hosting different events and
that organizations could rent the venue. He shared that the advisory board was hoping to be part of the
search committee for the new Executive Director. He shared that the City and Division should be more
involved and that the Commission should stay informed by attending events and encouraging more
community engagement. He noted that the advisory board had been contracted for four meetings and that
only two remained.

Bedoya thanked Vice Chair Choice for his engagement with the advisory board. He stated that the Division
would be open to participate in future conversations and could connect with Councilmember Bas.

Cultural Affairs Commission Chair’s Update
Chair Whang noted that there is a vacant seat on the Commission and that there needs to be commissioner
crossover with the PAAC.

Chair Whang proposed three ad hoc committees: community advocacy and communications, funding
oversight, and policy. She shared that with the dissolution of the Funding Advisory Committee that those
grant funding oversight duties need to be transferred to the Commission through a subcommittee. She also
shared that there should bea policy subcommittee which is focused on areas like the Henry J. Kaiser
development, the film office, and the general plan.

9. Ad Hoc Team Updates

Advocacy & Communications

Commissioner Lipsett gave an update on advocacy-related communications. She provided an overview of
work that had been done three years ago to restore the Division’s budget and educate elected officials on
the importance of the arts. As part of those efforts, over 1,100 signatures were collected through an online
petition. Commissioner Lipsett noted that this list could be leveraged to share more information on the
Division, cultural events, the Commission and to provide insight on government processes.

Policy
Chair Whang shared that a group had formed to lobby the Mayor about promoting film work in Oakland.
She informed the Commission that the City previously had a Film Office but it was now run out of the

Page 9 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



10.

11.

12.

Permits office. Vice Chair Choice shared that artists like Rafael Casal, Boots Riley, Favianna Rodriguez, and
W. Kamau Bell had come together to bring more film industry opportunities to Oakland. He also discussed
the potential for an ad hoc committee or group to focus on addressing the lack of live music opportunities
for musicians.

Bedoya clarified that a film collective was working on how to incentivize the film industry to work in Oakland
and was looking for funding. Commissioner Lee clarified that a group of individual artists had come together
to advocate under the leadership of the Center for Cultural Power.

Open Forum

The following members of the public made a comment: Polly v Kotombi (Omni Commons), Sam Bempong
(film collective), Drusilla Cowan (Kaiser Center), and Osagie the Great.

Chair Whang thanked the public for their comments.

Announcements & Acknowledgements
Commissioners Santi Owen, Martinez and Vice Chair Choice acknowledged the passing of Jess Curtis,
Ndubuisi Madu, and Calvin Keys, respectively.

Vice Chair Choice shared that he would be attending Civic Design Studio’s Creative Expo. Commissioner Lee
shared the release of Leila Mottley’s second book. Chair Whang shared that April is Arts, Culture and
Creativity month and is a good opportunity to advocate for the support of the arts with legislators.
Commissioner Ludlum shared Californians for the Arts as a resource for advocacy. Chair Whang shared
Americans for the Arts as another resource for arts advocacy week. Vice Chair Choice shared that he would
be attending Californians Arts Council workshops and emphasized the need to advocate for resources at the
state level.

Commissioner Santi Owen made a motion to call for a special meeting for June; Vice Chair Choice seconded
the motion.

Austin AYE
Choice AYE

Easton Absent
Esoimeme AYE
Lee AYE
Lipsett AYE
Ludlum AYE

Martinez AYE
Santi Owen AYE
Whang AYE

The motion passed.

Closing
A motion to end the meeting was made by Commissioner Ludlum, seconded by Commissioner Lee.

The meeting adjourned at 8:36 PM.

Page 10 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



AGENDA REPORT

CITY OF OAKLAND

TO:  Cultural Affairs Commission FROM: Greg Minor
Deputy Director,
Economic and Workforce
Development Department

SUBJECT: Developing Oakland’s Film Industry DATE: June 6, 2024

RECOMMENDATION

Staff Recommends That The Cultural Affairs Commission Accept An Informational
Report On Developing The City Of Oakland’s Film Industry.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The City of Oakland’s (City’s) existing approach to supporting film production in Oakland is
generally reactive and focused on permitting, which limits the size of the City’s film sector. Staff
recommends shifting to a proactive, incentive-based approach centered around a rebate program.
The rebate program would offer film productions rebates based on a percentage of qualifying
expenses, such as expenditures at Oakland businesses and the hiring of Oakland residents. The
adoption of a rebate program, combined with investments in the Midcycle Fiscal Year 2024-2025
Budget to market the City as a filming destination, will bring Oakland to the attention of film
producers and move the City towards a “win-win-win” of generating local employment and
business opportunities, attracting new tax revenues to support City services, and providing outlets
for community expression.

BACKGROUND / LEGISLATIVE HISTORY

Oakland’s Current Film Permitting Process and Film Office

The City’s current involvement with the film industry is limited to the permitting of film
productions under the guidelines of Oakland Municipal Code (OMC) 5.24. Specifically, a portion
of one full-time employee in the Special Activity Permits Division in the Economic and Workforce
Development Department (EWDD) responds to film production inquiries and issues permits that
prescribe the time, place, and manner a film production may occur. The permitting process
includes collecting a film permit fee that ranges from $60 to $300 a day depending on the type
of production as well as fees for any staff that City provides during filming activity. Figure One
below outlines the volume of permits issued annually from 2019-April 2024.

Cultural Affairs Commission

June 13, 2024
Page 11 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda


https://library.municode.com/ca/oakland/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT5BUTAPERE_CH5.24FIPE

Cultural Affairs Commission
Subject: Developing Oakland’s Film
Date: June 6, 2024 Page 2

Figure One: Number of Film Permits Issued Annually 2019-April 2024

Year Number of Film Permits Issued
2019 247
2020 87
2021 159
2022 144
2023 74
January-April 2024 21

Notably, the City does not offer any financial incentives for film productions to situate in the City
nor a marketing function to attract film productions to Oakland. The lack of a City fee waiver or
a rebate for local expenditures places the City at a competitive disadvantage with local
jurisdictions that do offer those incentives, as described in the following section. However, even
if the City Council authorized fee exemptions and rebates for film productions’ local expenses,
at present, the City lacks staff capacity to administer these programs. Rebate programs require
additional staff to review rebate applications, confirm they meet eligibility criteria, and verify local
expenses. Likewise, the City currently lacks marketing staff to attract film productions to film in
the City. Consequently, only those film productions that are already familiar with the City and its
variety of landscapes are likely to film in the City, and thus only a fraction of all film productions
consider filming in the City. In summary, the City’s existing approach to film productions is
reactive and limited to permitting, which constrains the size of the City’s film industry.

How Other Jurisdictions Attract and Benefit from Film Productions

Numerous local and state? jurisdictions in the United States and abroad have adopted programs
to incentivize film productions to take place in their jurisdiction with the goal of attracting
economic activity inside their jurisdictions. The economic activity from film productions can take
the form of staying at local hotels, supporting local businesses, as well as employing local
residents. Figure Two below provides a sample of local jurisdictions that offer financial
incentives to film productions.

1 The state of California provides tax credits to films produced in California, including an additional credit for
productions outside of the Los Angeles region (see https://film.ca.gov/tax-credit/the-basics-3-0/).

Cultural Affairs Commission

June 13, 2024
Page 12 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda


https://film.ca.gov/tax-credit/the-basics-3-0/

Cultural Affairs Commission
Subject: Developing Oakland’s Film

Date: June 6, 2024

Page 3

Figure Two: Local Government Film Industry Incentives

CA

fees

photography must take
place in San Francisco

Jurisdiction Eligibility Criteria
Name Program Scope Summary Amount
San Francisco, | Refund of City More than half of principal | Up to $1 million

available annually;
Maximum Individual
Award=$600,000

expenditures

resident labor, local
expenses.

Sacramento, Grants for City Either 50% of filming in Production grants
CA fees and local Sacramento region or of $10,000 and
expenses. 75% of post-production in | post-production
the City of Sacramento. grants of $5,000.
San Antonio, Rebate on 7.5 % Films and TV shows with Maximum Individual
TX of approved at least 60% of production | Award=$250,000
spending in San days in San Antonio area
Antonio that spend at least
$100,000 and 70% of
crew and cast are Texas
residents and at least
10% of case and crew are
San Antonio residents.
Oklahoma Rebate on 20- Qualifying expenses Program Capped at
City, OK 30% of qualifying | include Oklahoma $3 million

New Orleans,
LA

Tax credit up to
40% of eligible
expenses

Create minimum of five
new direct jobs for
Louisiana residents.

Tax Credits up to
$180 million per
year

The impact of film incentive programs varies by jurisdiction and how one measures the impacts.
In the case of the City and County of San Francisco (San Francisco), San Francisco found that
for every dollar it rebated since 2006, productions have spent $13.66 locally and that
productions have hired more than 15,664 local crew and actors represented by unions and 204
first source hires.? Moreover, San Francisco Travel asserts that film and television shows set in
San Francisco inspire a large percentage of San Francisco visitors. Together these three
examples demonstrate the “win-win-win” economic potential of film productions. For additional
examples and an analysis of an Oakland Production Incentive, please review Attachment One,
Final Report to the Center for Cultural Power by Olsberg SPI.

2 Film SF Impact Report Fiscal 2022-2023 available at: https://www.sf.gov/sites/default/files/2024-
01/Film%20SF%20Impact%20Report%20FY22 23.pdf

Cultural Affairs Commission

June 13, 2024

Page 13 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda


https://www.sf.gov/sites/default/files/2024-01/Film%20SF%20Impact%20Report%20FY22_23.pdf
https://www.sf.gov/sites/default/files/2024-01/Film%20SF%20Impact%20Report%20FY22_23.pdf

Cultural Affairs Commission
Subject: Developing Oakland’s Film
Date: June 6, 2024 Page 4

Oakland’s Employment Needs

The City of Oakland’s Workforce Development Board (OWDB) works in partnership with
community benefit organizations, industry, other City departments, and regional agencies to
build pathways to prosperity. OWDB understands that the road to quality, empowered, and
meaningful careers requires persistence, collaboration, endurance, investment, capacity
building, and innovation. Through OWDB partnerships and investments, the City strives to
provide the support and services needed, especially for community members who have been
harmed by historical and persistent systemic disparities and thus face barriers to employment.
The pathway to a quality job may take a long-term approach and look differently across
industries and populations, but to create equitable economies, all Oaklanders are entitled to
employment that provides the following characteristics:

e Options for full-time, regular employment, paying family-sustaining wages.

e Benefits and social protections, such as health, dental, retirement, pension/retirement
savings, subsidized dependent care/flex spending, paid family/sick leave, disability
insurance.

e Safe working conditions.

e Disability-friendly and accessible work site(s) and hiring practices.

e Employees' training, upskilling and advancement, and transparency of workplace
policies.

e Stable, automation-resilient pathways (and/or contingency plans for technical/industry
advances).

e Policies to include workers’ voices, expertise, cultures, and perspectives and ability to
organize labor unions without obstruction.

e Equitable hiring practices and working environments (Takes a systematic, intentional
approach to generating opportunity for those who are under-represented and/or face
barriers to quality employment.)

e Work functions that are environmentally sustainable (and/or employer is actively working
towards environmentally sustainable goals given the serious economic implications of
climate change and the disproportionate impact on low-income communities &
communities of color.)

When combined, the characteristics of a quality job create a platform for workers to not only
survive, but also to thrive and advance. Quality careers provide an inclusive, safe environment
where equitable values are built into the workplace and cultural norms nurture opportunity,
recognition, and belonging for all employees (or worker/owners.)

In 2020, the OWDB conducted a race and equity analysis that identified disparities in
employment access in Oakland.® Specifically, the analysis found that in the communities of
East Oakland, Fruitvale and West Oakland, where a high number of Black and Latinx residents
live, community members are unemployed at higher rates than the general population. The race
and equity analysis included a stated goal of increasing “access to workforce services and
improving the employment outcomes for residents in zip codes (94621, 94603, 94605,
94601,94607) with the highest unemployment rates.” The analysis also identified specific

3 0akland Workforce Development Board Special Meeting June 24, 2020 agenda packet, pp.17-48 available here:
https://ca0-94612.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/Agenda-and-staff-report-for-Special-Meeting-of-the-Oakland-
Workforce-Development-Board-June-24-2020.pdf

Cultural Affairs Commission

June 13, 2024
Page 14 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com%2Fdocuments%2FAgenda-and-staff-report-for-Special-Meeting-of-the-Oakland-Workforce-Development-Board-June-24-2020.pdf&data=05%7C02%7CGMinor%40oaklandca.gov%7Cf04a05679e3d456af64308dc4d0bc7dd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638469960193793387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cmruzRHS6yMTiuX5Cmf7oXjzf8IzXdQxLB1fhEMgfh8%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com%2Fdocuments%2FAgenda-and-staff-report-for-Special-Meeting-of-the-Oakland-Workforce-Development-Board-June-24-2020.pdf&data=05%7C02%7CGMinor%40oaklandca.gov%7Cf04a05679e3d456af64308dc4d0bc7dd%7C989a21806fbc47f180321a9ee969c58d%7C0%7C0%7C638469960193793387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cmruzRHS6yMTiuX5Cmf7oXjzf8IzXdQxLB1fhEMgfh8%3D&reserved=0

Cultural Affairs Commission
Subject: Developing Oakland’s Film
Date: June 6, 2024 Page 5

actions to advance this goal, including ensuring workforce funding is distributed to these
neighborhoods, and exploring partnerships with organizations in these neighborhoods to
increase access points.

Current Barriers to Local Film Production

Despite a large creative community in the Bay Area, many productions take place outside the
City due to the cost of film production in the City. The City is a high-cost market for production
due to both the general high cost of living in the Bay Area as well as the high cost of renting film
equipment as a result of the lack of local film infrastructure such as studios and sound stages
(see Attachment One and Attachment Two, BAVC Media, Lessons from the Field: National
Insights to Inform Bay Area Film Production Growth). The lack of local rental houses requires
that film productions drive equipment up from Los Angeles, which increases the cost of film
production in the City. Consequently, film productions focused on minimizing costs opt to film in
Los Angeles or in jurisdictions outside of California that offer generous financial incentives for
film production.

ANALYSIS AND POLICY ALTERNATIVES

Developing the City’s film industry advances the Citywide priority of housing, economic, and
cultural security by increasing local employment opportunities, generating new tax revenues,
and fostering outlets for community expression. Below staff outlines a framework for achieving
these goals.

A. Establish an Incentive Program for Film Productions

To offset the comparatively high cost of production in the City of Oakland compared to Los
Angeles, the City should consider adopting a financial incentive program as outlined in Figure
Three below. Accordingly, the Mayor’s proposed Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Midcycle Budget
allocates five-hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) to seed a film rebate program. Additionally,
the proposed Ordinance authorizes the acceptance of donations towards the rebate program to
augment the City’s initial investment, should foundations or other third parties seek to support
the City’s film industry.

In terms of eligibility criteria, staff recommends establishing a minimum expenditure threshold of
$250,000 to avoid spending limited staff time reviewing extremely small projects produced by
hobbyists while still supporting small budget independent projects. Additionally, staff
recommends that all film productions receiving a rebate provide Oakland residents with skills
and training.

With respect to the amount of the incentive, staff recommends a baseline rebate of ten percent
of any Oakland expenses. This approach is simple and should be attractive to film productions
interested in staying in California as no local jurisdiction in California currently offers a rebate on
all local expenses. Additionally, staff recommends two targeted additional incentives to
encourage film productions to hire residents and utilize vendors from zip codes with
disproportionately high levels of unemployment, namely zip codes 94621, 94603, 94605, 94601,
94607. The ordinance also allows for an annual update to the targeted zip codes based on

Cultural Affairs Commission

June 13, 2024
Page 15 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Cultural Affairs Commission

Subject: Developing Oakland’s Film

Date: June 6, 2024

Page 6

changes to unemployment throughout the City. The intent of these additional incentives is to
reduce employment disparities within the City by providing extra financial incentives for film
productions to support less resourced communities.

Figure Three: Proposed Financial Incentive Framework

Eligibility Criteria

Baseline Incentive

Additional Incentives

Production must provide film
skills and training to Oakland
residents as determined by the
City of Oakland's Film Office;
AND

Minimum expenditure of
$250,000

10% rebate on any items or
services purchased or rented in
Oakland, as well as wages of
Oakland residents.

2.5% additional rebate on
wages of Oakland residents
from zip codes with highest

levels of unemployment.

2.5% additional rebate for
expenses on vendors from zip
codes with highest levels of
unemployment.

B. Add Staff to Market Filming in Oakland and Administer Incentive Program

The addition of staff to promote filmmaking in the City and administer a financial incentive
program for film productions will shift the City from a reactive to a proactive posture aimed
towards the “win-win-win” economic potential of additional film productions in the City. The
Mayor’s proposed Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Midcycle Budget includes investments to cover the
costs the staff positions described below for a one-year period.

i. Marketing Staff Will Maximize Oakland’s Potential

As noted earlier, the City has a range of locations and communities that film productions and

production companies outside of the Bay Area are not likely to be familiar with and that existing
staff lack the capacity to properly market. An additional staff member could take on this project
and ensure producers are aware of all the City has to offer. The Mayor’s proposed Fiscal Year
2024-2025 Midcycle Budget includes one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) to fund the
creation of a database of film locations in the City and a portion of a staff person to market the
City to film production companies.

ii. Financial Incentive Programs Require Oversight

Likewise, implementing a financial incentive program, particularly a rebate program, requires
additional staff to review applications. This work will require interacting with producers in
advance of productions to screen their eligibility and thorough reviews of expenditures post-
production. This work is essential to ensuring the City receives the benefits from the financial
incentive program. Sufficient staffing is key to attracting interest from film productions as well,
as prompt and clear responses from City staff will provide producers with the confidence they

Cultural Affairs Commission

June 13, 2024

Page 16 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Cultural Affairs Commission
Subject: Developing Oakland’s Film
Date: June 6, 2024 Page 7

need to situate their productions in the City. The Mayor’s Office’s proposed Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 Midcycle Budget includes funding for one year of a Special Activity Permit Technician to
oversee this function.

C. Leverage City Property Where Feasible

The City has an extensive portfolio of owned properties, including development sites, parks and
open spaces, and other community facilities that can be made available as filming locations.
The Master Fee Schedule currently requires payment of a $2,607.25 flat fee for the required
license agreements, but the City could create a fee exemption for film productions that meet
desired eligibility criteria, provided the City establishes a source of funding to cover any fees
waived. Given the City’s current fiscal environment, a fee waiver program may be more
appropriate after the initial phase of the program.

It may also be possible to incorporate film infrastructure (e.g., studio and sound stages,
equipment storage) into the future development plans for surplus City-owned development sites.
Developing film infrastructure would reduce the cost of film production in the City and thus is
another way of encouraging film productions to take place locally. As noted earlier, the lack of
studio and sound stages in the City limits indoor shooting and post-production in the City.
Likewise, the lack of local film equipment increases the current cost of filming in the City as this
requires productions to transport their equipment from Los Angeles. Developing sound stages,
studios, and equipment storage facilities on surplus City-owned development sites could
address these issues and potentially serve as film industry employment and small filmmaker
incubator. The disposition and development of these sites is subject to the State Surplus Lands
Act, which prioritizes the use of surplus public property for affordable housing development.
However, this does not necessarily preclude film infrastructure development on these sites, and
staff can further explore the feasibility of this potential strategy.

D. Launch Program as a Pilot and Evaluate Effectiveness Over Time

While growing the City’s film industry has the potential to generate local employment and tax
revenues as well as inspire tourism, these outcomes are not certain. Film productions can have
a negative impact, such as impeding customers from supporting local businesses,* and the
public deserves oversight over any investment of public funds to ensure they are achieving their
stated objective effectively. The Mayor’s proposed Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Midcycle Budget
effectively launches the financial incentive program as a pilot as it provides one-time seed
funding and funding for staff for one year. This approach will allow the City to evaluate the
impact of the program and make any needed adjustments based on lessons learned through
implementation before committing to a permanent program.

4 See https://www.ktvu.com/news/freaky-tales-movie-shoot-irking-some-oakland-merchants

Cultural Affairs Commission

June 13, 2024
Page 17 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda


https://www.ktvu.com/news/freaky-tales-movie-shoot-irking-some-oakland-merchants

Cultural Affairs Commission
Subject: Developing Oakland’s Film
Date: June 6, 2024 Page 8

FISCAL IMPACT

As described above, developing the City’s film industry has the potential to increase tax
revenues and reduce unemployment. Film productions increase tax revenues directly through
film productions’ spending on local businesses and at hotels as well as indirectly by inspiring
people to visit the City after seeing a film or television series filmed in the City.

To attract these benefits, The Mayor’s proposed Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Midcycle Budget
includes the following investments:
e A one-time appropriation of five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) from the General
Purpose Fund (1010) in the Film Rebate Project (1007498) towards the rebate program;
e A one-time appropriation of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) from the General
Purpose Fund (1010) to cover the cost of creating a database and marketing the City as
a filming destination.
¢ One special activity permit technician to administer the rebate program for a one-year
period from the Genera Purpose Fund (1010).

In summary, the launching of a financial incentive program for film productions will cost the City
both in the form of the rebate funds provided as well as the cost of City staff required to
implement the rebate program. Following implementation of the pilot program, staff can weigh
whether the tax revenues and employment benefits outweigh or have the potential to outweigh
the costs of the film rebate program.

PUBLIC OUTREACH / INTEREST

On May 2, 2024 staff presented an informational report to the Oakland Workforce Development
Board (OWDB) on developing the City’s film industry, including the strategies outlined in this
report. The OWDB expressed support for recommendations provided in the informational
report.

COORDINATION

The Economic and Workforce Development Department consulted with the Office of the Mayor,
the Finance Department, the Department of Race and Equity, and the Office of the City Attorney
in preparation of this report.

SUSTAINABLE OPPORTUNITIES

Economic: Developing the City’s film industry offers a “win-win-win” opportunity by generating
new tax revenues from hotel stays and support of local businesses, new jobs from local hiring,
and increased tourism from new film and television shows exposing the City to new audiences.

Environmental: Encouraging local entertainment and employment opportunities can reduce
commutes and related greenhouse gas emissions.

Cultural Affairs Commission

June 13, 2024
Page 18 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Cultural Affairs Commission
Subject: Developing Oakland’s Film
Date: June 6, 2024 Page 9

Race & Equity: A financial incentive program to hire residents and support entrepreneurs from
areas of the City with disproportionately high levels of unemployment will reduce racial
disparities in employment and wealth building.

ACTION REQUESTED OF THE CITY COUNCIL

Staff Recommends That The Cultural Affairs Commission Accept An Informational Report
On Developing The City Of Oakland’s Film Industry.

For questions regarding this report, please contact Greg Minor, Deputy Director, Economic and
Workforce Development Department, at (510) 238-6370.

Respectfully submitted,

(~ T~

GREG MINOR
Deputy Director, Economic and Workforce
Development Department

Attachments:
(1): Final Report to the Center for Cultural Power by Olsberg SPI.
(2): BAVC (Bay Area Video Coalition) Field Study

Cultural Affairs Commission

June 13, 2024
Page 19 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a
new Oakland Production Incentive

= ©
: :
Final Report to the ® : 5
Center for Cultural S
Power by Olsberg SPI o

th o
30 April 2024 OLSBER(y SPI



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

CONTENTS
= R [0 o T Ui o o SRR 3
1.1, AboUtthe STUAY oo 3
1.2, SuMmMary of FINAINGS ....cvoiiiiiiiiiiiee e 3
1.3.  Summary of Incentive Recommendation .........cccceeveriniiiieesiinennenns 5
2. KeY FINAINGS ..o 7
2.1. Oakland’s Film and Television Production Sector..........ccccceveeeeeee..n. 7
2.2.  Availability of INCENTIVES ......eoeiiiiiiie e 8
2.3. Competition with Other US States and Global Markets ................... 9
3. Incentive Recommendation .........cccueveeiiiiiiire i 10
3.1, GUIdING PrinCIPIes ....ooiiiiee e 10
3.2, KeY FEATUIES ... 11
3.3. SOt INCENTIVES ....viiiiiiiceciee e 15
3.4. Additional Options and Commentary........ccccoeeeeeiiieeeniiee e 16
L. Data ColleCtion ... 18
4.1, Collecting Data ......c.eeiiiiiiieiieee e 18
5. Analysis of Comparable Markets..........ccccveiiiiiieiiieiie e 20
5.1.  City and Regional Incentives in California..........ccccveveviiniineennnnn. 20
5.2. Comparable City and Regional Incentives Outside of California .....21
6. The Economic Impact of INCENTIVES.......ccovviiiiiiiiiieeee e 24
6.1. Assessing the Economic Impact of Incentives .........cccccevieiiennennnn. 24
6.2, K@Y MEASUIES .....eiiiiiiiiiieii ettt 24
6.3, MICrO IMPaCtS ... 26
6.4. Additional Impacts and Benefits ........cccoooviiiiiiiiii e 27
© OlsbergeSPI 2024 30" April 2024

Page 21 of 67

CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1. About the Study

Oakland is well-positioned to grow its film and television production
ecosystem and attract valuable production investment, but in recent
years has lost productions to other Californian markets and other US or
global markets that offer incentives programs.

Against this backdrop, the Center for Cultural Power (the “Client”)
commissioned OlsbergeSPI (*SPI”) to analyze Oakland’s production
sector, as well as the production landscape in comparable markets, and
design the outlines of a new competitive production incentive for
Oakland (the “Study”). The Study involves four key elements:

1. Analysis of in-state and out-of-state competitor markets

2. Assessment of the rationale for an Oakland incentive

3. Incentive design

4. Recommendations for ongoing data collection.
This Final Report present’s SPI's findings, focusing on research into
Oakland’s production sector and comparable markets to provide an
informed and proportionate incentive design.

1.2. Summary of Findings
1.2.1. Rationale for an Oakland Production Incentive

Oakland has built a reputation as a strong creative center for film and
television, with a local filmmaking community that is committed to
telling locally driven stories, such as Fruitvale Station, Sorry to Bother
You, and Fremont.

Despite the fact that projects originate in Oakland and are often set
locally, there are challenges for filmmakers who want to carry out the
production in Oakland. A growing number of productions that are set in
Oakland are filmed elsewhere (in most cases outside of California) for
cost reasons.

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 22 of 67

The key findings are as follows:

Oakland is a high-cost market for production. This is a
combination of the general high cost of living in the Bay Area,
and the high industry costs (e.g. equipment rental) due to its
relatively small size.

While the state incentive is relatively competitive for approved

productions and contains several benefits for filming and hiring

outside of Los Angeles, it is massively oversubscribed and only

a small fraction of applications are approved. Because of the

availability of incentives in other states, rejected productions

move out of California to take advantage of incentives and bring
down their overall cost.

A new incentive in Oakland would aim to encourage

productions to film in the city. Three priority categories of

productions have been identified as potential targets for the
incentive:

1. Mid- to large-budget projects with strong creative reasons
to film in Oakland, that without the incentive would film
elsewhere.

2. Independent projects led by emerging local filmmaking
talent, that would struggle to come to fruition without the
incentive.

3. Larger California-based projects that may decide to film in
Oakland (as opposed to other Californian locations) if there
is an incentive to do so.

In this sense, the purpose of incentive would be to positively

impact and support these types of projects (which, crucially, all

have a desire to film in Oakland or California for creative
reasons) — not to make Oakland the most cost-competitive
location in the US or globally.

Because California has a state tax credit, Oakland’s incentive

should (as in other states) practically function as a top-up to the

state incentive. While this means the incentive inherits the

CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

instability of California’s state tax credit, it is not realistic to
expect the City of Oakland to fund an incentive that competes
with other US states.

e For smaller projects, the incentive could be a vital source of
funding which allows them to stay in Oakland. For larger
projects, the proposed incentive may not have a huge impact on
their budget, but the research for this Study suggests the
incentive would nonetheless put Oakland on the map within the
industry and give local producers (or potentially a fully
resourced film commission) something they can market to
decision-makers at the major production houses.

e The incentive would aim to attract local investment and create
general employment but would also encourage beneficiaries to
hire local creative and technical talent, promote Oakland on-
screen, and provide data which allows for deeper industry
analysis.

1.2.2. Analysis of Comparable City and Regional Incentives

Within California, several cities offer incentives to attract productions.
The incentives in California are typically waivers of city fees, such as
permitting costs. While these programs rarely make a difference for
large projects, waiver-style incentives like San Francisco’s (which offers
up to $600,000 in waived city fees) can influence decisions for smaller
productions.

Outside of California, several cities across the US offer incentives. The
incentives are offered in jurisdictions with similarities to Oakland and
aim to mitigate the higher cost of producing outside of a major
production center.

* Global Screen Production — The Impact of Film and Television Production on
Economic Recovery from COVID-1g, OlsbergeSPI. 25™ June 202o0.

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 23 of 67

As with California, they generally act as top ups to the state incentive
(e.g. Savannah’s incentive in Georgia, or San Antonio’s in Texas) and
only in combination do they attract large projects. Overall, the analysis
of comparable markets points to a need for an Oakland incentive to
work in combination with California’s state incentive.

1.2.3. Potential Economic Benefits of an Oakland Incentive

The principal objective of all incentives is to attract expenditure, and an
important part of maintaining an incentive is both to measure the
expenditure it generates, as well as the broad economic impact of this
expenditure.

While SPI has not undertaken specific economic impact projections for
this Study, the incentive would aim to deliver a range of benefits:

e Asnoted above, the key measure for any incentive system is the
expenditure generated by the system. Film and television
production can deliver substantial investment in a jurisdiction in
a short space of time — SPI analysis of an example major feature
film ($220 million budget) shows an average of $9.9 million in
weekly expenditure during its 16-week shoot, as well as
substantial expenditure during both the prep and post phases.”

e ‘Additionality’ is the term used to describe expenditure that
results from the presence of an incentive. Without an incentive,
expenditure deemed to be ‘additional’ would either have been
incurred elsewhere, or not at all. For example, a production
destined for Oakland may — without an incentive — either film in
another US state or simply not be made. In the UK, for example,
91% of film production expenditure covered by incentives

CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

between 2017-19 was determined to be ‘additional’ in that it 1.3. Summary of Incentive Recommendation
directly resulted from the presence of incentives.”

e Gross Value Added (GVA) is a measure of the value that is
created by economic activity. It is the difference between gross
output and intermediate inputs and broadly equivalent to
profits plus wages; at a national level, it aligns to Gross Summary of Incentive Recommendation
Domestic Product (GDP). Often, it is expressed as a return-on- Type of Incentive Cash rebate
investment figure — GVA or overall economic Rol. An evaluation
by SPI of lllinois’ film tax credit, for example, found an overall

A summary of the Incentive Recommendation is provided below.
Further detail for each element, including the rationale behind the
recommendation, is in Section 3 of this report.

Qualifying Expenditure ~ Wages for services performed by City of Oakland
residents, during the applicable period relating to

economic Rol of 6.81, meaning that for every s$i1 invested original production or post-production in the City of
through the program, $6.81 is generated in terms of additional Oakland.
. . 7 . 3
economic value from direct, indirect, and induced effects. Non-wage expenditures for items purchased and / or
e Expenditure through incentives also positively impacts rented from vendors based in the City of Oakland.
employment, typically measured as Full Time Equivalents Incentive Rate 10%
(FTEs).

" Uplifts Additional 2.5% if production crew are more than 50%

e Interms of micro-impacts, productions typically have a “ripple Alameda County residents

effect, where expenditure flows outside of the film and
television sector and into other sectors, such as hospitality, real
estate, and travel businesses.

e Finally, while production predominantly occurs within large

Annual Cap or Program  Determined by the City of Oakland on a quarterly or
Cap annual basis, based on applications (no fixed cap)

orif a capis required

production hubs the supply chain for this production can often $3 million for first three years of operation.
cover a broader area. A key ijective of an Oaklz?md in.centi-ve Per-Project Cap $300,000 basic per-project cap, or $600,000 for
would be to encourage regional development in California, productions eligible to receive the workforce uplift
where the industry is concentrated in Los Angeles. Minimum Expenditure $500,000 minimum Oakland qualifying expenditure
Threshold
* Screen Business, OlsbergeSPI with Nordicity for the British Film Institute. 3 Economic_impact of the lllinois Film Production Services Tax Credit,
December 2021. OlsbergeSPI for lllinois Production Alliance. 19" December 2023.
© OlsbergeSPI 2024 30" April 2024 5

Page 24 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

Marketing and
Promotion

Skills and Training

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

On-screen credit requirement (text and logo).

Productions to provide high resolution publicity stills
(including behind-the-scenes images), artwork / poster,
and press kit (e.qg. clips, trailers) cleared for promotional
use by the City of Oakland.

Productions to agree a bespoke skills plan with the
Oakland Film Office, based on high-level guidelines.

30" April 2024

Page 25 of 67

CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

2. KEY FINDINGS

This chapter presents the key themes arising from research to date,
including consultations.

2.1. Oakland’s Film and Television Production Sector

Oakland has a strong reputation as a creative center for film and
television, with a large local filmmaking community that has found both
commercial success and critical acclaim through locally driven stories,
such as Fruitvale Station, Sorry to Bother You, and Fremont. This has a
strong effect on the number of productions which originate in Oakland,
but in many cases the local industry is required to produce in other
markets — primarily due to the lack of available incentives in California
and Oakland.

The analysis of Oakland’s film and television sector focused on four key
technical areas which, in addition to the provision of incentives (covered
separately — see both Sections 2.2 and 5.1), comprise the main factors
for producers when considering different production markets.

2.1.12. Workforce

The availability of high-quality workforce is a major draw for any
location, both for obvious quality reasons, but also for cost benefits.
Productions incur significant additional costs on travel and
accommodation for non-resident crew, so for this reason productions
will typically want to hire as much as possible locally.

Film and television productions can generally source high-quality crew
for Oakland productions both from Oakland and from the wider Bay
Area. It is important to note that crew considered to be part of the
“Oakland” industry do not necessarily live within the city limits.

Except during exceptional circumstances, such as the boom in
production following the lifting of Covid-19 restrictions, crew capacity is
not seen by industry as a major capacity constraint. However, some

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 26 of 67

senior production roles, such as local line producers, are in relatively
short supply in the Bay Area.

There is a strong desire from industry for there to be more training
opportunities aimed at Oakland residents. In addition, crew from
Oakland who work in production will move to Los Angeles or other parts
of the US. These crew would in some cases like to return to Oakland.

2.1.2. Infrastructure

Infrastructure can be a major draw for certain productions: almost every
film or series production will require some form of indoor shooting
space, but many productions will base (i.e. headquarter the production)
in one location but undertake part of the filming, or post-production
elsewhere.

The lack of sufficient infrastructure (particularly studios and sound
stages) was raised as a major inhibition to attracting higher-end
productions to Oakland, and the Bay Area more generally. However, the
presence of a studio facility (in the absence of local incentives,
promotion, and so on) is unlikely to draw major productions to
headquarter in Oakland.

While there are converted spaces in use (for example, facilities on Mare
Island in Vallejo, and Treasure Island in San Francisco —as well as smaller
conversion facilities nearer to Oakland) these facilities face competing
demand from different industries and only work for certain types of
productions.

2.1.3. Equipment

The availability of equipment is a key issue for Oakland and the Bay Area
industry, particular as it relates to the overall cost of filming. While some
equipment is available locally, there are no high-end rental houses
locally. Equipment often has to be driven up from Los Angeles, adding
significant cost to the production.

CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

This was noted across consultations as an issue for Oakland (and the
wider Bay Area). There may be options for public authorities to invest in
equipment for smaller productions, however the specific equipment
needs of larger productions can be difficult to anticipate. Higher
production levels in Oakland would likely result in large equipment
vendors opening local branches.

2.1.4. Marketing and Promotion

The presence of a local film office or film commission can significantly
impact the awareness of Oakland among studios, producers and the
wider industry. Oakland

Currently, the Oakland Film Office facilitates incoming and local
productions by organizing permits, and assisting these productions as
other challenges arise on an ad-hoc basis. It should be emphasized that
the Oakland Film Office is highly regarded by industry for the quality of
its support in this area.

Nonetheless, it has no outward-facing functions — e.g. it does not
actively promote Oakland to producers, location managers, or other
relevant targets. The presence of an incentive in Oakland would raise
the city’s profile on its own, but it should be considered whether an
active marketing effort from an expanded Oakland Film Office could
deliver even greater impact.

2.2. Availability of Incentives

Oakland does not have a dedicated film and television production
incentive, and while this was raised as an issue by consultees, the

“ California’s Film & Television Tax Credit Program Attracts Biggest Blockbuster in
Program History, Adding $166 Million to State’s Economy, California Film Commission.
26" February 2024. Accessible at: https://film.ca.gov/californias-film-television-tax-
credit-program-attracts-biggest-blockbuster-in-program-history-adding-166-million-

to-states-economy/

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 27 of 67

primary bottleneck for the industry (especially those working on larger
projects) is California’s state incentive.

California’s state incentive is in fact relatively generous and makes a
large positive financial impact for the projects that receive it. It is worth
also noting that, for the projects that do gain access to the state tax
credit, there are several in-built mechanisms that benefit Oakland:

e An additional 5% tax credit is available for expenditure outside
of the Los Angeles Zone

e Anadditional 210% tax credit is available for expenditure on local
hires during filming outside of the Los Angeles Zone (local hires
are defined as ‘employees living and working outside the Los
Angeles Zone').

If California’s production incentive were widely available, it would likely
deliver real impacts for Oakland through these mechanisms. However,
there is intense demand and only a fraction of applicants are ultimately
approved. For example, in the most recent application round (February
2024) 59 projects applied and only 15 were approved.* In September
2023, 55 projects applied and only 16 were approved.> Competition is
regarded as being even more intense for independent films, which have
an annual allocation of $26.4 million out of the total $330 million
available.

This creates a difficult position for any cities or regions within California
that wish to offer an incentive: while it makes sense to tether city
incentives to state programs and offer a “top up” to producers, this also

5 California’s Film & TV Tax Credit Program Welcomes Big-Budget Films and Diverse
Roster of Indies, California Film Commission. 8" September 2023. Accessible at:
https://film.ca.gov/californias-film-tv-tax-credit-program-welcomes-big-budget-films-
and-diverse-roster-of-indies/

CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

means cities like Oakland inherit the higher-level issues with the state
incentive.

2.3. Competition with Other US States and Global Markets

There is intense competition across the US, and globally, to attract
production investment.

While to some degree Oakland competes with Los Angeles for projects,
the projects that do not receive approval for the California incentive
generally leave California entirely and look to other production markets.
Anecdotally, the cost of production is higher in Oakland than Los
Angeles, however Oakland does not meaningfully lose production to
other parts of California in the same way that the state loses production
to other US or global markets.

For example, several recent Bay Area or Oakland-set stories have been
filmed in other production markets:

e The Book of Jobs, which is set in the Bay Area, filmed in
Oklahoma.

e Black Panther is partly set in Oakland. While several exteriors
were shot in the city, the film was primarily made in Georgia.

e Clickbait is set in the City of Oakland but filmed primarily in
Australia.

e [I'mAVirgoissetin Oakland but filmed primarily in New Orleans,
Louisiana.

All four of the above markets (Oklahoma, Georgia, Australia, Louisiana)
attracted Oakland-set productions, and were identified during the
Study as competitors. These markets offer competitive incentives,
high-quality crew, and in some cases infrastructure, all of which reduce
the cost of production.

Nonetheless, while these are important markets, they are not the only
markets which compete with Oakland. While the quality of crew and
infrastructure varies greatly, Oakland (and California generally)

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 28 of 67

competes with over 100 global markets which offer production
incentives.

Figure 1 - Active Production Incentives by Global Region, 2017-2023

113
107
98 97 97 | =
86 2 xm Em mm
| | 15
- 14
10 10 12 25
7 11
e 11 11 12
33
30 31 31 32 33
32 33 33 30 35 39
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
m US States H Europe
m Canada m Asia / Oceania

Latin America/Caribbean m Middle East / Africa

Source: OlsbergeSPI

CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

3. INCENTIVE RECOMMENDATION

This section provides a full recommendation for an incentive for the City
of Oakland, including guiding principles, information on key rules, soft
incentives, and other considerations.

Summary of Incentive Recommendation

Type of Incentive

Qualifying Expenditure

Incentive Rate

Uplifts
Per-Project Cap

Annual or Program Cap

Minimum Expenditure
Threshold

Marketing and
Promotion

Skills and Training

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

Cash rebate

Wages for services performed by City of Oakland
residents, during the applicable period relating to
original production or post-production in the City of
Oakland.

Non-wage expenditures for items purchased and / or
rented from vendors based in the City of Oakland.
10%

Additional 2.5% if production crew are more than 50%
Alameda County residents

$300,000 basic per-project cap, or $600,000 for
productions eligible to receive the workforce uplift

Determined by the City of Oakland on a quarterly or
annual basis, based on applications (no fixed cap)

orif a capis required
$3 million for first three years of operation.

$500,000 minimum Oakland qualifying expenditure

On-screen credit requirement (text and logo).

Productions to provide high resolution publicity stills
(including behind-the-scenes images), artwork / poster,
and press kit (e.qg. clips, trailers) cleared for promotional
use by the City of Oakland.

Productions to agree a bespoke skills plan with the
Oakland Film Office, based on high-level guidelines.

30" April 2024
Page 29 of 67

3.1. Guiding Principles

3.1.1. Attracting Investment

The purpose of a production incentive is to attract valuable production
investment. The core objective therefore is creating a system that is
attractive to potential producers. At the same time, markets that offer
incentives often include additional measures to encourage specific
behavior or types of spend.

Finding a balance between these two sides (incentivizing and
leveraging) is key to the operation of a successful incentive system.

3.1.2. Oakland-Specific Principles

There are several guiding principles for a new Oakland production
incentive:

e Three priority categories of productions have been identified as
potential targets for the incentive:

1. Projects with creative reasons to film in Oakland, that
without the incentive would film elsewhere.

2. Projects led by local filmmaking talent, that would struggle
to come to fruition without the incentive.

3. Larger California-based projects that may decide to film in
Oakland (as opposed to other Californian locations) if there
is an incentive to do so.

¢ Inthis sense, the incentive would not aim to make Oakland the
most cost-competitive location in the US or globally but would
make a difference for a select group of potential projects.

e Because California has a state tax credit, Oakland’s incentive
should (as in other states) practically function as a top-up to the
state incentive.

e The incentive would put Oakland on the map within the
industry and give local producers (or potentially a fully
resourced film commission) something they can market to
decision-makers at studios.

10
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

e The incentive would aim to attract local investment and create
employment but would also encourage beneficiaries to hire
local creative and technical talent, promote Oakland on-screen,
and provide data which allows for deeper industry analysis.

¢ Inaddition, a key objective embedded in the incentive would be
to make Oakland a city in which filmmakers can live and work,
both in the sense of retaining and repatriating creative talent.

3.2. Key Features

This sub-chapter describes the rationale behind the recommendations

being made.

3.2.1. Type of Incentive

OPTIONS

RECOMMENDATION

RATIONALE

Different models exist to support production,
including cash rebate incentives, tax credits,
discretionary  funds, fee waivers, tax
exemptions, and others.

Cash rebate

The cash rebate model provides producers with
a cash incentive which is calculated as a
percentage of their local qualifying expenditure.

Cash rebates offer a high degree of transparency
for both producers and government. Producers
can review the rules and regulations ahead of
making an application and get a good sense of
eligibility and the potential incentive amount.

® Accessible at: https://cdn.film.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/3.0-QEC-

1.pdf

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 30 of 67

3.2.2. Qualifying Expenditure

OPTIONS

RECOMMENDATION

RATIONALE

Qualifying expenditure rules define the types of
expenditure that qualify towards the incentive.
The final incentive amount to producers would
be the qualifying expenditure multiplied by the
incentive rate.

Wages for services performed by City of Oakland
residents, during the applicable period relating
to original production or post-production in the
City of Oakland.

Non-wage expenditures for items purchased and
| or rented from vendors based in the City of
Oakland.

The recommended qualifying expenditure
definition mirrors the language used for “Out of
Zone" qualifying expenditure for the state film
tax credit. Using the same, well-understood
system makes it easier for producers to track
eligible Oakland costs.

To assist producers, the incentive authority in
Oakland should build a relevant local version of
the California Film Commission’s Qualified
Expenditure Chart® using the same expenditure
categories. This would still allow Oakland to
differ in its treatment of costs.

11
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

The recommended qualifying expenditure is
relatively limited in that it only applies to the City
of Oakland. It may be preferable to widen the
boundary to Alameda County — or potentially
further — if this is an option for a city-funded
incentive.

3.2.3. Incentive Rate

OPTIONS

RECOMMENDATION

RATIONALE

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

The incentive rate is a percentage that is applied
to the qualifying expenditure to calculate the
incentive amount, usually between 15%-40% for
standalone state or country incentives.

10% with uplifts (see Section 3.2.4)

A higher incentive rate is more attractive to
producers, but increases the cost to
government, so it is important to strike a
sustainable balance.

The recommended incentive rate of 10% is low
when compared to state-level incentives but
reflects the presence of California’s state film tax
credit, and the fact that an Oakland incentive, for
many projects, would act as a top up to the state
incentive.

Compared to other city incentives, the 10% rate
is relatively generous — San Antonio, for example
offers a 7.5% incentive. However, the proposed
incentive has a relatively modest per-project cap
(see Section 3.2.5) meaning that while the net
incentive would be exactly 10% for small

30" April 2024
Page 31 of 67

3.2.4. Uplifts

OPTIONS

RECOMMENDATION

RATIONALE

projects, it would (as intended) be lower for large
projects:

e For example, a project that incurs
$2 million in qualifying costs would
receive (with the uplift in Section 3.2.4)
an incentive worth $250,000, or exactly
10% of their qualifying costs.

e However, a project that incurs
$10 million in qualifying expenditure
would receive the capped $600,000
incentive, or 6% of their eligible costs.

As incentives grow in usage by governments,
targeted ‘uplifts’ have become more common to
encourage specific production practices or to
achieve strategic objectives. Uplifts provide
additional incentive value (usually around s5-
10%) for meeting specific criteria.

2.5% up to an additional $300,000 if production
crew are more than 50% Alameda County
residents

Uplifts should be achievable for productions and
provide value to a location in return for the
increased incentive. Across the Oakland
filmmaking community there is a strong desire
for productions to employ (and build up) local
talent, and this uplift would reward productions
that do so.

12
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

3.2.5. Per-Project Cap

OPTIONS

RECOMMENDATION

RATIONALE

The per-project cap of an incentive is the
maximum incentive available to any single
project.

$300,000 basic per-project cap, or $600,000 for
productions eligible to receive the workforce
uplift

Our research suggests that even a small
incentive could have an outsized promotional /
awareness impact for Oakland. Therefore the
recommendation is for a relatively modest per-
project cap that would provide a meaningful top-
up for large projects, and a large boost for
smaller projects.

The cap is modelled on other similar (city or
regional) incentives across the US and is set at
the same level as San Francisco. Although the
proposed incentive is structured differently to
San Francisco’s waiver system, at first glance this
will show producers that Oakland’s incentive is
(at least) on par with San Francisco.

3.2.6. Annual or Program Cap

OPTIONS

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

The annual or program cap of an incentive sets a
limit on the total amount of funding available in
a given year, or across the lifespan of a program.
Larger state incentives do not use annual or
program caps. In other cases, incentive funding
is requested (e.g. by the film office) each year
based on the volume of applications.

30" April 2024
Page 32 of 67

RECOMMENDATION Determined by the City of Oakland on a

RATIONALE

OPTIONS

quarterly or annual basis, based on applications
(no fixed cap)

orif a cap is required

$3 million for first three years of operation.

To ensure open access to the incentive for all
productions which meet the eligibility criteria, it
is recommended that it operate without a fixed
annual cap.

The first recommendation above is informed by
San Antonio, which determines a budget for the
film incentive each year based on the volume of
applications, and the amount requested. This is
not “uncapped” in the way that some state
incentives are but offers flexibility for the city to
respond to demand.

The City of Oakland may be required to set aside
a fixed amount for the incentive. If this is the
case, a three-year cap of $3million (second
recommendation above) is recommended to
start the incentive. This allows for the high year-
on-year fluctuation which is typical of new
incentives. If in this period there is a risk of
funding being exhausted, the City of Oakland
should consider appropriating additional
funding to the incentive to meet demand.

3.2.7. Minimum Expenditure Threshold

Incentives often include a minimum spend
threshold for eligibility, meaning only projects

13
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

RECOMMENDATION

RATIONALE

that incur a certain amount of qualifying
expenditure are eligible.

$500,000 minimum  Oakland

expenditure

qualifying

There are two primary options for minimum
spend thresholds:

e A low minimum spend threshold allows
all projects — except the very smallest —
to access the incentive. A low minimum
expenditure ensures the incentive is
effectively open-to-all, but should still
filter out projects which would not be
worth the administrative resource.

¢ Ahigh minimum spend threshold can be
used in an established production
location to encourage larger projects.

Although Oakland has an established industry,
the incentive should aim to (at least in part)
support independent local projects. Therefore
the recommendation is for a relatively modest
threshold that still ensures projects reach a
certain scale in order to be eligible.

For smaller projects, other forms of funding
(such as selective grants) may be more relevant.

3.2.8. Marketing and Promotion

OPTIONS

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

Incentives often require productions to include a
‘screen credit’ that acknowledges (in the end
credits, along with other organizations which

30" April 2024
Page 33 of 67

RECOMMENDATION

RATIONALE

have contributed to the production) the relevant
incentive agency or screen office for the financial
support.

The incentive agency may also request
marketing materials (cleared for promotional
use) from the production.

On-screen credit requirement (text and logo).
After production, production to provide:

e High resolution publicity stills (including
behind-the-scenes images)

e Artwork /[ posters

e Press kit (e.g. clips, trailers) cleared for
promotional use by the City of Oakland.

The recommendation is for a relatively standard
set of marketing deliverables, similar to other
incentives. Applicants will generally expect to
provide these deliverables as part of receiving
incentives, and they can be used to promote the
City of Oakland as a filming location.

3.2.9. Skills and Training

OPTIONS

Incentives can require productions to undertake
certain training-related activities as part of
receiving the incentive. These could include
requirements to hire a certain number of local
trainees or to participate in local workshops or
masterclasses, or in some cases, to provide a
bespoke skills plan.

14
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

RECOMMENDATION

RATIONALE

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

Productions to agree a bespoke skills plan with
the Oakland Film Office, based on high-level
guidelines.

Generally, any training requirements associated
with incentives should be reasonable and
achievable, so as not to discourage productions.

While there is a case to be made for having strict
rules (e.g. hire two trainees), productions will
vary in size and will have different abilities to
undertake local training activities.

The bespoke approach allows the Oakland Film
Office and individual productions to collaborate
on a realistic, actionable plan for workforce
development. In addition, the incentive
authority / Oakland Film Office should provide
productions with a document outlining general
principles.

Areas of focus could include:

e Providing opportunities for new entrants
into the industry

e Offering placements for trainees

e Taking an active role in upskilling
existing workforce

e Providing members of the production
with mentoring

e Above-the-line skills development

e Promotion of industry careers to
students

e Working with schools, universities, or
other educational institutions.

30" April 2024
Page 34 of 67

3.3. Soft Incentives

In addition to the core recommendation above for a cash rebate
incentive, Oakland should match other cities and counties in California
by waiving permitting charges and other city fees. Following the model
in other parts of the state and given that this recommendation is
intended to work alongside the cash rebate proposal above, the waiver
should be capped at $50,000 per project.

While these incentives can assist in attracting larger projects, they are
particularly valuable for smaller productions. In many cases smaller
projects can utilize these support mechanisms to not only cover
permitting charges, but also other city fees including (but not limited to)
production office spaces, public transport, police, traffic control, and
other elements of the production.

The approach qualifying charges and fees should be consistent with San
Francisco, and include:

e Any taxes, with the exception of hotel or sales taxes, paid to the
City of Oakland, or any of its constituent departments

e Any moneys paid to the City of Oakland, or any of its
constituent departments, for the use of City property,
equipment, or employees

e Any moneys paid to the City of Oakland, or any of its
constituent departments, for the use of property leased by the
City of Oakland

e Any daily use fees charged by the Oakland Film Office to
engage in film production in the City

e Police services, provided that such services do not exceed four
police officers per day for a total of 12 hours maximum per day
per officer.

15
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

3.4. Additional Options and Commentary
3.4.1. Application and Payment Process Speed

In addition to the recommendations above, the process speed of for
reviewing application and making payment critical to the success of an
incentive.

Fast-track processing and disbursement of incentives ensures that
eligible productions can progress without additional delays, reducing
risk for producers. This is especially important with the rising cost of
money internationally. Generally, an incentive has two application
processes that are relevant here:

e Before production begins, an application is made to determine
eligibility and gain approval in principle for funding. The
incentive authority reviews key information about the project,
including a budget estimate. This review process should take no
more than 30 days.

e After production, an application for payment is made. The
applicant provides the final budget and evidence of expenses
(often audited by a 3 party), which the incentive authority
reviews before approving payment. This review process should
again take no more than 30 days, and the subsequent payment
process should take no more than 60 days (9o days total).

An advance payment or instalment option was considered as part of this
Study. While it would benefit smaller productions, it would require the
City of Oakland to take on significant risk in the process. For large studio
productions, while advance payment can assist with cashflow, there is
usually no benefit from a financing perspective.

3.4.2. Using an Incentive to Market Oakland

There is a tangible marketing impact that comes with having an
incentive. Sacramento has a small grant system, which is unlikely to
move the needle for large projects. However, in research for the Study

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 35 of 67

it is clear that producers are aware of the program, and it has helped to
put Sacramento on the industry map.

Oakland could benefit in the same way from a modest incentive — even
if it cannot offer a meaningful incentive (in financial terms) for large
productions, its presence alone may help to raise awareness of Oakland
as somewhere looking to attract production investment.

3.4.3. Incentive Jurisdiction

Although Oakland acts as a major center for the local filmmaking
community, the local industry is spread out across the Bay Area.
Producers source crew and equipment across the Bay Area, and most
“Oakland” productions film at least in part outside of the city limits.

Depending on the availability of county or regional funds, there is a case
to be made for expanding the applicable jurisdiction for the incentive,
so that it better matches the needs of industry.

3.4.4. Qualifying Expenditure Rules, and Consideration of the
“Effective Rate”

A key element of efficient incentive design is specifying the qualifying
expenditure for an incentive system —i.e., the types of costs incurred by
the production that are eligible for an incentive.

For example, a production may decide to shoot in a jurisdiction offering
anincentive worth 20% of qualifying expenditure. The productionincurs
$10 million in total expenditure, but half of these costs are non-
qualifying due to the incentive regulations, so the production’s
qualifying expenditure is $5 million. In this case, the final cash rebate
would amount to $1 million, or 10% of the total production costs.

While many governments are focused on advertising a high headline
rate, decision-makers at major global production companies are equally
aware of the effective rate of incentives, i.e., the value to the project
after the incentive rules are considered.

16
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

3.4.5. Showcasing "Oakland as Oakland” on Screen

Across the industry there is a desire for any Oakland incentive to
support projects which showcase the city on screen. While the incentive
could include a requirement to this effect (i.e. the incentive would only
be available to projects which directly feature Oakland as Oakland on
screen), there is potential for such a rule to have unintended
consequences and discourage otherwise-valuable productions from
filming in Oakland.

© OlsbergeSPI 2024 30" April 2024 17
Page 36 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

4. DATA COLLECTION

For any production incentive system, it is crucial that the managing
entity both requests data from productions, and compiles it in a useful
way to gain insight into the industry.

4.1. Collecting Data

Applicants submit information to an incentive authority generally at
two stages. First, before production starts, the applicant submits an
initial application to confirm eligibility for the incentive. Once
production is finished and the qualifying expenditure has been incurred,
a final application is submitted to request payment.

At both stages, the incentive authority is able to request data from the
applicant. Some data will be necessary to confirm basic eligibility for the
incentive, and to calculate the incentive amount. Other data are not
strictly related to the operation of the incentive but allow the incentive
authority to gain deeper insight into the industry — for research uses,
general monitoring, evaluations, or to inform policy changes, for
example.

Please note that while all incentives require the production to submit
data on the production — e.g. expenditure, call sheets, CVs, audit
confirmation —for evidence purposes, these are often not provided in a
standardized format. The recommended data request below should be
provided to the relevant authority in a standardized format, ideally
within the application form. This will allow for easier aggregation and
comparison of the data provided.

4.1.1. Standard Data Request

As a minimum, the incentive should request or track the following
information for each production receiving the incentive. For the initial
application, expenditure figures will be provided as estimates:

e Name of production
e Name and address of production company

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 37 of 67

Type of production (e.g. feature film, TV series, documentary)
Total expenditure in Oakland

Qualifying expenditure in Oakland

Total payroll expenditure

Total vendor expenditure

Date of application

Incentive awarded / paid.

4.1.2. Expanded Data Request

The following are examples of optional data that an incentive authority
could request from applicants:

e Start date of production — i.e. start date of principal
photography, or equivalent for post-production / animation

e Breakdown of expenditure between different categories of
vendor (e.g. vehicles and transport, accommodation and food,
rental and equipment, locations, construction, wardrobe and
hair/makeup)

e Alist of each vendor (or local vendor) used by the production,
each including the address of the vendor, and the total amount
of expenditure incurred

e Headcount, including a breakdown of cast, creative team, crew,
and extras

e Residency of cast, creative team, and crew

e Payroll split by residency (in this case, Oakland resident or non-
resident)

e Total number of hours worked by resident cast and crew

e Any data related to specific nature of incentive (e.g.,
expenditure in different parts of state / region, number of cast
and crew from particular demographics or from areas of high
unemployment).

Given that the California Film Commission requires the production to
provide filming days and headcount figures (along with the expenditure

18
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

data in 4.1.1) it should be feasible to request Oakland-specific versions
of these figures.

© OlsbergeSPI 2024 30" April 2024 19
Page 38 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

5. ANALYSIS OF COMPARABLE MARKETS

As part of the Study, a range of comparable markets with city-level or
region-level incentives were analyzed. The key findings from this
analysis are as follows:

e Within California, several cities offer incentives to attract
productions.

o Outside of a small grant program in Sacramento, and a
proposal to introduce a significant incentive in San
Diego (through the state legislature), the incentives in
California are typically waivers of city fees, such as
permitting costs.

o For large productions, these programs rarely move the
needle, but for small projects, waiver-style incentives
like San Francisco’s (which offers up to $600,000 in
waived city fees) can make a difference.

e Outside of California, several cities across the US offer
incentives. They generally act as top ups to the state incentive
(e.g. Savannah’sincentive in Georgia, or San Antonio’s in Texas)
and only in combination do they attract large projects.

o In Florida, the lack of a state incentive has led Fort
Lauderdale to implement a small program of its own,
but its small size means it cannot compete with most
state offerings.

e The top-up incentives are offered in jurisdictions with
similarities to Oakland and aim to mitigate the higher cost of
producing outside of a major production center. For example,
the Savannah program aims to offset the higher cost of
producing in Georgia outside of Atlanta, the main industry hub.

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 39 of 67

5.1. City and Regional Incentives in California

5.1.1. Sacramento

Sacramento Film + Media Grant Program

Type of Incentive Grant

Details Total of eight grants, six US$10,000 grants for
production and two USss,000 grants for post-
production.

Annual or Program $70,000

Cap

Funding Source Office of Arts and Culture

The city of Sacramento introduced the grant program, The Sacramento
Film + Media Grant Program, in 2020 with the purpose of growing and
sustaining film and television production in the City of Sacramento. The
grant sits under the Film Sacramento, and aims to subsidize permit fees,
reduce the costs of safety personnel, and reimbursing qualified
expenditure for activities that occur in the city of Sacramento. The grant
is split into two programs, one for production, which awards up to six
USs$10,000 grants per year and two $5,000 grants targeted for post-
production.

5.1.2. San Diego (Proposed — Not Active)

San Diego Regional Film Financial Incentive Pilot Program

Type of Incentive Cash Rebate

Details 30% on qualified expenditure, up to unknown
amount per project.

Annual or Program USs25 million over the course of three years to the
Cap end of 2028

Funding Source County of San Diego

San Diego does not offer an incentive at time of writing howeverin 2023
legislators proposed an incentive for lower-budget productions in San

20
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

Diego. The bill died earlier in 2024 so there is no active proposal to
introduce this incentive.

The bill would have established the San Diego Regional Film Financial
Incentive Pilot Program, offering a cash rebate to productions with
budgets between $150,000 and $999,999. The rebate would have been
worth 30% of San Diego County qualifying expenditures and 20% of
non-San Diego qualifying expenditures. Only productions which spend
at least 70% of their budget on San Diego resident laborers, retailers, or
suppliers would have qualified. The proposed budget for the program
was USs$25 million over the course of three years to the end of 2028.

It is notable that the proposed bill would have appropriated state funds
to the County of San Diego for the incentive — i.e. it would not have
drawn on local funds.

5.1.3. San Francisco

San Francisco Film and Television Rebate Program

Type of Incentive Cash Rebate

Details Rebate up to US$600,000 per project cap for
qualified expenditures

Annual or Program The program overall is capped at $13 million until it
Cap sunsets (in June 2028).

Funding Source The incentive is “funded” through forfeited city

department revenue.’

The city of San Francisco introduced the cash rebate, The San Francisco
Film and Television Rebate program in 2015, and lasts until 2028. The
rebate sits under FilmSF. Productions, including features, television
series or independent productions qualify for the rebate and may

7 Participating city departments include Port, San Francisco Police

Department, San Francisco Fire Department, San Francisco Municipal

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 40 of 67

receive up to US$600,000 for any qualified expenditure that was made
while shooting in San Francisco.

Effective value: The San Francisco incentive can be combined with
California’s 20%-25% state tax credit.

5.2. Comparable City and Regional Incentives Outside of
California

5.2.1. San Antonio

Supplemental San Antonio Film Incentive Program

Type of Incentive Cash Rebate
Details 7.5% on qualified expenditure, up to $250,000 per
project

Annual or Program Determined by the City of San Antonio on an annual
Cap basis, based on applications. $472,000 was
approved for 2024 fiscal year.

Funding Source Community and Visitor Facilities Fund

The supplemental San Antonio Film Incentive Program was founded in
2017 and renewed in 2022. The bill awards 7.5% of approved San
Antonio spending, with a maximum award for US$250,000 per project.
In order to qualify, 60% of the project’s production days must take place
in the greater San Antonio Metro Area, along with a minimum spend of
US$100,000 in San Antonio.

Effective value: The San Antonio incentive can be combined with
Texas’ 5%-22.5% rebate.

Transportation Agency, Public Works, Treasure Island, and Recreation and
Parks.

21
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

5.2.2. Fort Lauderdale, Florida

Film and Television Incentive Program

Type of Incentive Rebate
Details 10-15% on qualified expenditure, up to $175,000 per
project

Annual or Program Not stated — eligibility assessed on a case-by-case
Cap basis.

Funding Source Broward County Board of County Commissioners

Fort Lauderdale introduced their incentive in 2021, offering up to 15%,
up to a maximum incentive of USs$175,000 per production project.
Productions are required to have a minimum qualified spend of
$400,000 in Broward County, have 50% of production days be based in
Broward County and 55% of the main cast/crew must be from Broward
County, Miami-Dade County or Palm Beach County. The incentive sits
under Film Lauderdale.

Effective value: Florida does not have a state incentive, so the 15%
offered in Fort Lauderdale should be considered a standalone incentive.

5.2.3. Savannah

Savannah Entertainment Production Incentive

Type of Incentive Rebate

Details 10% on qualified expenditure in Chatham County,
up to $100,000 per film or $250,000 per series

Annual or Program $1million
Cap

® Economic Impact Study of Georgia’s Entertainment Industry Tax Credit,
OlsbergeSPI for Georgia Screen Entertainment Coalition. 6 November 2023.

© OlsbergeSPI 2024 30" April 2024
Page 41 of 67

Funding Source Savannah Economic Development Authority

Savannah introduced the incentive in 2015, offering a 10% rebate, up to
$100,000 per project for feature films and pilots, and up to $250,000 per
calendar year on series. Productions requirements include a minimum
of $500,000 spend in Chatham County, and 50% of filming days need to
be within 60 miles of the City Hall of Savannah. The rebate sits under
Film Savannah and is funded by the Savannah Economic Development

Authority with a $3 million budget from 1% January 2022 to 31
December 2024.

Effective value: Savannah’s 10% incentive can be combined with
Georgia’s 20%-30% state tax credit.

IMPACT CASE STUDY - Savannah, Georgia

Incentive — In 2015, the Savannah Regional Film Commission
established the Savannah Entertainment Production Incentive
(detailed in Section 5.2.3 above) to encourage film and television
production in Chatham County (the county in which Savannah is
located). The incentive is worth 10% on qualified expenditure in
Chatham County, up to $100,000 per film or $250,000 per series, and
can be used in combination with Georgia’s 20%-30% state film tax
credit.

Expenditure — In 2022, nearly $207 million in expenditure was
incurred in Savannah across 101 productions.® This was up from
$125.6 million in 2019 and $59 million in 2015 — or a 3.5x increase in
seven years of the incentive being operational.®

9 Entertainment Production industry generates $125.6 million in direct spend
in_Savannah region in 2019, Savannah Economic Development Authority.
2020.

22
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

Workforce — The Savannah Regional Film Commission has reported can be used on its own or can be used in conjunction with the state of
strong growth in its production workforce. With a small local crew Oklahoma'’s incentive program.

base when the incgnti.ve was introduced, Savannah is now home to Effective value: The Cherokee Nation Film Incentive is effectively a
more than 300 unionized crew members and over 600 total crew standalone incentive although costs incurred in Oklahoma may be
members.*

eligible for the state’s 20%-30% incentive.

Infrastructure — The incentive has spurred investment in regional
infrastructure. Savannah Film Studios, part of the Savannah College
of Art and Design, has been significantly expanded, and as of 2021
offers an advanced mixed-reality LED volume stage

5.2.4. Cherokee Nation

Cherokee Nation Film Incentive

Type of Incentive Rebate

Details 10%-25% rebate on Above and Below the Line
wages,

Annual or Program $1million

Cap

Funding Source Cherokee Nation Businesses

The Cherokee Nation incentive was founded in 2021, offering between
10-25% on wages of above- and below-the-line residents, and 20%
rebate on qualified expenditure that has been incurred within the
boundaries of the Cherokee Nation. Productions must spend a
minimum of $50,000 in total Oklahoma spend with $25,000 of the total
spend within Cherokee Nation. The Cherokee National Film Incentive
is capped at $1 million annually, with no per-project caps. The incentive

> Based on crew listed in the Savannah Regional Film Commission’s crew
database with at least one production credit. /bid, OlsbergeSPI for Georgia
Screen Entertainment Coalition. 6" November 2023.

© OlsbergeSPI 2024 30" April 2024 23
Page 42 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

6. THE ECONOMICIMPACT OF INCENTIVES 6.2. Key Measures

e This chapter provides examples of economic impact in 6.2.1. Production Expenditure

comparable markets to Oakland. The key measure for any incentive system is the expenditure generated

6.1. Assessing the Economic Impact of Incentives by the system. Film and television productions generate large amounts
of expenditure, and the purpose of a financial incentive is to attract this
expenditure — which, in the absence of an incentive, may have been
undertaken elsewhere or not at all.

e Recent growth in film and television production globally has led
to increased understanding by policymakers and others of the
economic impact of the production expenditure it generates.

e The principal objective of all incentives is to attract expenditure, For example, the introduction of an incentive in Iceland in 1999 (and
and an important part of maintaining an incentive is both to subsequent improvements to the system in 2009, 2017, and most
measure the expenditure it generates, as well as the broad recently in 2022) delivered increased investment to the country over the
economic impact of this expenditure. course of many years. In 2023 (not covered in the chart below due to

e The impact is typically measured in terms of economic metrics data gaps), productions spent a ISK11.2 billion ($8o million) in Iceland —
such as Gross Value Added (GVA) and jobs but can also be the highest year on record.

assessed in terms of (among others) the quality of jobs,

expenditure in other industries, and regional development.

e lItshould be noted that there is debate in the United States as to 8,000 ‘
=
Q

Figure 2 — Production Expenditure in Iceland, 2000-2018

the best measures for assessing incentive (and the validity of
assessing broad economic impact), most recently covered in
The New York Times.™

e For example, in some cases, economic impact is more
conservatively assessed, only taking into account the additional
tax revenues generated by production —and setting this against
the government outlay to reach a Return on Investment (Rol)
figure.

o
o
o
o

4,000

2,000

Production Expenditure (ISK,
millions)

O N
I
N NN

Source: OlsbergeSPI / Icelandic Film Centre. Estimated based on incentive payments.

2005 E——
2013 —

2006 N
2007 N

2008

2012
2015 I

2009 N
2010 N

2000

2001 |
2002 N
2003 1
200, HH
2011

" States Have Spent $25 Billion to Woo Hollywood. Is It Worth 1t?, The New York
Times. 21* March 2024.

© OlsbergeSPI 2024 30" April 2024 24
Page 43 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

6.2.2. Additionality

‘Additionality’ is the term used to describe expenditure that would
either have been undertaken elsewhere, or not at all. For example, a
production destined for Oakland may — without state or city incentives
—either film in another US state or simply not be made.

The following examples illustrate the additionality impact in different
markets:

¢ In Georgia, a recent report by SPI found that less than 8% of
Georgia’s production activity would have occurred without the
film tax credit — or an additionality rate of around 92%.

e In New Mexico, an evaluation showed that for 92% of
productions taking place in the state, the incentive was the
most important factor identified by decision-makers when
choosing where to produce the film and television projects and
only 8% of total productions would have taken place in New
Mexico without the state’s tax credit.”

e Inthe UK, 91% of film production expenditure between 2017-19
was determined to be additional, as was 84% of high-end
television expenditure in the same period.*

6.2.3. Gross Value Added

Gross Value Added (GVA) is a measure of the value that is created by
economic activity. It is the difference between gross output and
intermediate inputs and broadly equivalent to

** SPI Economic Impact Study Finds New Mexico’s Film Incentive Programme
Delivers Strong Economic Benefits, OlsbergeSPI. g™ December 2021.

3 Screen Business, OlsbergeSPI with Nordicity for the British Film Institute.
December 2021.

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 44 of 67

profits plus wages; at a national level, it aligns to Gross Domestic
Product (GDP). It is an important measure that is widely used by
economic development agencies to understand the broader spending
impacts of investment. Often, it is expressed as a return-on-investment
figure — GVA or overall economic Rol:

e An evaluation by SPI of Illinois’ film tax credit, for example,
found an overall economic Rol of 6.81, meaning that for every
$1invested through the program, $6.81is generated in terms of
additional economic value from direct, indirect, and induced
effects.™

e New Mexico’s film tax credit delivered an GVA Rol of 8.4,
showing that for every $1 invested through the incentive
program the state’s economy benefitted by $8.40.%

6.2.4. Employment

Employment estimates are another important measure of an
incentive’s economic contribution. Most productions hire a large
number of freelancers over a relatively short timeframe (i.e. generally
less than a year) so for the purposes of providing a useful measure,
economic impact studies generally estimate Full Time Equivalent (FTE)
employment.

e For example, an evaluation of Australia’s Location Incentive
found that between 2019 and 2021 (fiscal years), the incentive
created an estimated 39,100 jobs equating to 27,800 FTEs.”®

* Economic impact of the lllinois Film Production Services Tax Credit,
OlsbergeSPI for lllinois Production Alliance. 19" December 2023.

*bid

¢ Economic assessment of the Location Incentive on Australia’s screen sector,
Bureau of Communications, Arts and Regional Research. February 2022.

25
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

6.3. Micro Impacts
6.3.1. The Speed of Expenditure

Film and television production can deliver substantial investment in a
jurisdiction in a short space of time. SPI analysis of an example major
feature film shows an average of $9.9 million in weekly expenditure
during its 16-week shoot, as well as substantial expenditure during both
the prep and post phases.

Figure 3 — Weekly Expenditure of Major Feature Film ($220 Million
Budget)

12

10

Expenditure ($ millions)

2
) ||||....|||||""| IIII"||||I||I|||||||||‘I|
6 11 16 26 31
Week

m Prep mShoot mPost
Source: OlsbergeSPI*7

7 Global Screen Production — The Impact of Film and Television Production on

Economic Recovery from COVID-1g, OlsbergeSPI. 25" June 2020.

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 45 of 67

6.3.2. "Ripple” Analysis

While some film and television production expenditure is specific to the
sector —i.e. it flows to individuals and supplier companies which only
work in film and television production, there is meaningful spend and
further economic impact in other sectors, such as hospitality, real
estate, and travel businesses.

Individual project budgets can be split by different business sectors to
show the “ripple” of production expenditure through an economy —see
below:

Figure 4— Example Ripple Analysis of a Drama Series, Mid-Size Budget

39.9% 60.1% |
Audiovisual Sector Specific Expenditure Other Sectors Expenditure
FINANCE,
LEGAL AND
COMPANY LOCAL LABOUR
COSTS %
i HEALTH
TRAINING AND AND
EDUCATION MEDICAL

3% 0.4%

SAFETY AND
SECURITY
1.9%

HOSPITALITY AND
CATERING
4%

FASHION AND
BEAUTY
3.6%

AUDIOVISUAL PRODUCTION
SPECIFIC

Drama Series

39.9% Mid-Size Budget

LOCATION FEES AND REAL

N\ N ESTATE
Percentages based on below-the-line mmm.ssawcas N 7.6%
expenditure NN

; \ \ MUSICAND PERFORMING
POWER
)
TRAVEL AND TRANSPORT UTILITIES
0.1% |
BUSINESS SUPPORT
CONSTRUCTION
8.5%

Source: SPI analysis of mid-size budget drama series (Australian-based) *®

8 Study on the Impact of Film and Television Production Incentives in Australia,
OlsbergeSPI, February 2023.

26
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

An example ripple analysis (above) was conducted on an Australian
high-end television series with a mid-sized budget.

In this example, around 40% of production expenditure went towards
film and television industry-specific businesses and service providers.
The remaining 60% of the project’s expenditure was spread across a
range of other business sectors, including over 8% on construction,
almost 12% on travel and transport, 4% on hospitality and catering
costs, and almost 7% on business support services and resources.

6.3.3. Vendor Heatmaps

While production predominantly occurs within large production hubs
(e.g. major cities with crew, studio infrastructure, equipment houses,
and post-production facilities — such as Los Angeles), the supply chain
for this production can often cover a broader area.

Vendor spend heatmaps show the location of vendors engaged by the
production and visually represent the geographic spread of the supply
chain. The following example shows the vendor spend of three
productions which filmed in Melbourne, Australia.

9 Study on the Impact of Film and Television Production Incentives in Australia.
Ibid

© OlsbergeSPI 2024

30" April 2024
Page 46 of 67

Figure 5 - Example of Geographical Spread of Production Expenditure
in Melbourne / Victoria, Australia®

N Production Expenditure
| by Postcode (s)
<1,000

N,

1,000 - 10,000
[ 10,000 - 100,000
4 200,000 - 1,000,000

Il 000,000 - 10,000,000

o

X

Source: SPI analysis of three Australian drama series
6.4. Additional Impacts and Benefits

A thriving film and television can deliver the following benefits, in
addition to those outlined above:

e Infrastructure Investment: Any production sector based on an
incentive system regarded as being stable and permanent is
likely to generate an increase in private sector infrastructure
investment in the supply chain, such as production,
postproduction and other digital facilities and services.

27
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



© OlsbergeSPI 2024

Feasibility and Design Study for a new Oakland Production Incentive

Screen tourism: tourist visit decisions are based on a variety of
factors but experiencing a destination through a shared, filmed
entertainment experience is one of the strongest. The positive
impressions caused in audiences are deep (latent) and long-
lasting and often repeated as the content is seen on streaming
platforms or works its way along the typical distribution
pattern.

Branding and “soft power”: The same effects that are
experienced by potential tourists about a destination are to be
found also in the international business and trade community.
When such individuals enjoy a story that is set in a particular
region, the positive effect can influence their attitude towards
future business visits as well as tourism visits.

o This can assist in building export markets and inward
investment and strengthen a region’s position as a hub
for investment flows

Talent development and knowledge transfer: The talent that
works in screen production have flexible and growing career
opportunities, at home and abroad. The talent pool has high
level, adaptable and modern skills with an increasing focus on
technical skills as well as traditional writing, directing,
producing, performing and other vocational abilities. Working
on high standard international projects delivers opportunities
to build these skills.

Developing creativity and innovation: The production process
employs a large number of creative endeavours. In addition to
the traditional areas, there continue to be huge developments
in and opportunities for creativity and innovation in production
and post-production, delivered through digital innovations of
all types, in particular in visual effects and virtual production.
Enhancing media literacy: Screen production has become a
vital tool for education, communication and entertainment,

30" April 2024
Page 47 of 67

now or soon to be possibly usurping the place held in education
by the traditional written word.

o Many education systems around the world are having
their schools adapt curricula to include developing
students’ digital capabilities.

Providing a heritage record: Archived film material is a critical
asset for any culture.

o Through digital innovations, the archive sector is
reinventing itself and gradually moving from a culture
of preservation (and often this means restricting
access) to one of increasing openness and new forms of
distribution and exposure.

Connecting with citizens and residents: Any positive
experience of watching screen content (discussed above in
relation to tourism) can have a long-lasting and latent effect of
positivity towards the culture and locations on show.

o This positive effect also enhances the relationship with
the region and culture which are on screen, producing
‘bonding’ effect among citizens (or residents) to a
nation, region, or city, with added impacts on pride,
loyalty and citizenship.

28
CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



\_

Lessons from
the Field:

National Insights to Inform Bay Area
Film Production Growth




Research Team:

Paula Smith Arrigoni, BAVC Media
Kailen Sallander, BAVC Media

with support from
John Carnwath, WolfBrown

Acdvisory Committee:

Lex Sloan, The Roxie
Anne Lai, SFFILM
Masashi Niwano, SFFILM

Rivkah Beth Meadow, Kenneth Rainin Foundation
& Frankly Speaking Films

Erica Milsom, Ryzo Studio

Sam Bempong, East Bay Film Collective
& Mindful Media

Funding Partner:

Ted Russell, Kenneth Rainin Foundation




Introduction

This project was conceived to learn more about strategies to boost film production in
the Bay Area, and associated economic and social benefits. The study consists of a field
scan of other film and media markets outside of California and a Film & Media Maker
Survey of over 300 Bay Area artists. Our project was developed in collaboration with
WolfBrown, with guidance from an advisory committee, support from Film SF and the
Bay Area Media Maker Summit (BAMMS), and essential funding from the Kenneth Rainin
Foundation.

BAVC Media (Bay Area Video Coalition) is a nonprofit organization that has operated
film and media programs in the region for nearly 50 years, since the early days of
portable video cameras. Our mission centers on supporting media makers from diverse
backgrounds to make and preserve media, through art, technology, and education. We
engage in field-building and research activities to advance our programs for media
makers, often in collaboration with peers. This project is heavily influenced by our
organization’s on-the-ground experiences providing training, workforce development,
and artist development, for youth and adults in film and media.

WolfBrown collaborates with industry leaders to build a more equitable, pluralistic, and
sustainable future for artists, organizations, and whole ecosystems. We are grateful to
WolfBrown for providing us with guidance and support to conduct field interviews.

- Abstract

Since the 1990's, significant investment has been made in film production - locally,
across the United States, and internationally. The nature of these initiatives has varied
significantly, as have the strategies that they have pursued. While film tax credits
receive most of the headlines, several initiatives have also invested in networking,
infrastructure, communications, workforce development, and advocacy. This study
takes a qualitative approach to understand what elements of other locations’ film and
media industries might be transferable to the Bay Area’s creative economy. Through
interviews with stakeholders in seven states, it's clear that the key to a successful
industry is a ‘three-legged stool with incentives, workforce, and infrastructure’. In
addition, we learned that achieving those three key components can be attributed to a
collaborative community made up of government, community organizations, individual
artists, and industry partners.




Methodology

We deployed qualitative research methods to conduct informal interviews with
stakeholders in a variety of other film and media markets. Eligible participants were
film commissioners and staff, nonprofit leaders, researchers, and media artists. Note
that film offices (commissions) have a variety of organizational structures. They

can be housed within economic development, commerce, arts and culture, tourism
government agencies, or, on rare occasions, independent organizations.

In order to contact a wide variety of potential participants, BAVC Media leveraged
contacts from Film SF (the City of San Francisco’s film commission), online research on
other film industries, and snowball sampling as participants introduced us to potential
interviewees over the course of the study. During the six-month research period, we
collected data from seventeen people across seven states. We also reviewed data
from a public panel discussion at the Independent Media Arts Group, co-facilitated

by the National Endowment for the Arts and BAVC Media, and interview transcripts
from the East Bay Film Collective for a related research project. The geographic

spread of participants spanned cities including: Seattle, Washington; Oklahoma City,
Oklahoma; Cherokee Nation; Denver, Colorado; Chicago, lllinois; Austin, Texas; New
Orleans, Louisiana; and San Francisco, California (Appendix A). We took an exploratory
approach to select the cities and states where we concentrated our interviews -
generally seeking insight from those that have similar qualities (such as strong tourism
and iconic locations, and the presence of universities and other educational feeder
programs), and markets that have grown significantly over the last twenty years. We
intentionally excluded Los Angeles, New York, and Atlanta, to focus on markets that are
more relatable to the Bay Area.

Our team conducted interviews collectively, utilizing a semi-structured interview
guide (Appendix B). Questions covered topics such as the participants’ role in the
film and media sector, their personal perception of the sector, factors contributing
to local/regional growth, and the documentation of the sector’s trajectory. We took
a flexible approach to the interview style and asked substantial follow up questions,
following the lead of the participant. The interviews were transcribed and coded to
identify key themes.




- Findings

Incentives

Tax Incentives were a major focus for all respondents. That's especially true for those
who work at film offices, but even independent artists and community organization
leaders cited them as absolutely critical to local industries.

i

cdon’t think it can be denied that in New Orleans, it has
created a space and an opportunity for indepencdent film to
also thrive.

New Orleans Interviewee

/]

The tax credit is a big [incentive]... the lllinois Film Office and
the Chicago Film Office have heen pushing that so hard, and
that has been really successful in bringing more investments
to Chicago.

Chicago Interviewee




Government support and production tax incentives are not only beneficial to
commercial production, they are key for small-budget independent productions as well.
In addition, incentives are integral to the promotion of local hires. Interviewees in New
Orleans were skeptical that non-local film productions would go through the effort of
hiring locally if the Louisiana state tax incentive didn't require it. The Cherokee Nation
Film Office mentioned that their increasing involvement in workforce development
initiatives was an effort to train up their own people and send them out to productions,
with the goal of creating an environment where they can stay and film there.

Many of the incentives discussed in the interviews are at the state-level programs,
designed to drive economic development. However, some locations also have local
incentives that can be layered with the state incentives. Participants in both Austin
and Oklahoma City described their local incentives as “deal sweeteners.” Although
everyone was supportive of incentives that support productions in their state and
region, they also noted the benefit of having incentives specifically for productions
filmed in their city. For example, in Austin, one interviewee said,

4

--it's just really nice... it helps us keep production[s] in
Austin that might look at other cities in the Texas region.

\_

- . - Page 53 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda
Insights to Inform Bay Area Film Production Growth J J



Other individuals spoke to the regional benefit of productions. In lllinois, one
interviewee spoke about the revenue generation and job creation in the State and
region, as a result of ample film production activities occurring in Chicago. When
local cities are coordinated, there may be a “spillover effect” from a film production
for local workers accessing jobs, out-of-area workers finding temporary housing and
other accommodations, vendors, and actual days of production moving next door for
a specific shoot. A robust region benefits all of the individual cities. A great example
is New Orleans where we heard, “..if a film goes from New Orlecns to Baton Rouge or
to Shreveport, that's great because they see the economic benefit and that’s going
to help the whole community.” We suspect the difference in perspectives might be
influenced by the geographic size of a state.

The leadership and engagement of local film offices are also critical for developing
and growing film and media ecosystems. Many of the stakeholders we interviewed are
film commissioners, who spoke to us about the additional leg work they provide and
their hands-on approach to investment and growth. For example, the Cherokee Nation
Film Office hosts a database of native talent and crew. Similarly, in Austin and New
Orleans, the film office leaders are actively involved in connecting productions to local
talent and crew. In addition to connecting crew, the Austin film commissioner hosts a
database of locations for productions and encourages hiring local production scouts.
Leaders across several other cities are directly involved in workforce development
initiatives, which is discussed further below.

Despite the clear benefits of government support and tax incentives, maintaining and
increasing support for funding is often a contentious political issue. Almost all of the
interviewees mentioned the need for ongoing advocacy to local politicians in the effort
to approve, expand, and/or continue incentive programs. Most interviewees described
this as a challenge, notably at the state level in Colorado, Oklahoma, and Louisiana. In
New Orleans, one participant explained,

i

Every time there’s a vote, there’s this rallying to get all film
organizations, and anyone who cares about film, and anyone
impacted by film, to show up at the Capitol to make sure that
voices are heard... it's always like an important cdeal when
that gets voted on because there is such fear of, you know,
that money [is] being taken away.




Another New Orleans interviewee said, “There’s always d really scary moment when the
tax incentives are up for debate because people have made huge investments in this.”

Despite the ongoing challenge, leadership in the Cherokee Nation and Washington
State surfaced positive strategies to help educate local politicians about the underlying
economic importance of the film and media sector. Both film offices found that
bringing political leaders to production sets, and directly involving them garnered their
support moving forward. In Oklahoma, the Cherokee Nation Film Office pivoted to going
to communities and hosting meetings with local state legislators as a strategic move

to speak with legislators about being film-friendly year-round. They saw legislators who
were originally against tax incentives change their vote after hearing from constituents
about how they sustain themselves via the industry. Similarly, in Washington, an
interviewee told us:

/]

One of the things that has been really effective is getting
folks out on set, hringing the political leaders in, the
decision makers out to see hecause a lot of people, as lots
of you know, have a mistaken impression of what the film
industry is...Because folks have this sometimes glamorous
impression of the film industry when really it's a workers’
issue. It is a workers’ industry and creative workers need
to he supported. And so getting our political leaders to
understand that is essential and a firsthand view can be
really helpful.




This interviewee described additional community-based methods to get political
leaders on board when she said, “We spent d lot of time in the community...listening

to people from underrepresented communities about what they need to succeed and
how we get there. And so working with the information that we gathered, we have
implemented several things within the equity spadce in the law.” The impact of these
efforts in Washington was public support to build a soundstage under the guidance of a
fifteen-person industry advisory team.

Workforce Development and Retention

Even in locations with ample production activities, workforce development programs
are needed to ensure that the productions hire local talent, further generating positive
economic impact.

We heard that often the local talent pool was not able to meet the need for the largest
productions that come to town. In order to fill this gap many film offices told us they
were directly involved in funding and administering training programs. Partnerships
were leveraged with myriad organizational partners including local nonprofits,

unions, community colleges, and universities. Film New Orleans shared that their
office is, “..also a large funder and supporter of workforce training programs and
filmmaker development programs in the city of New Orleans, and we have our partner
organizations, among them, NOVAC and the Film Society.” Similarly, an independent
filmmaker in Chicago reflected on the accessibility of professional developmentin
Chicago for individuals who are typically marginalized from higher education when she
said, “There’s definitely tons of educational workshops [for] people who maybe have
not had the opportunity to go to film school... [They] can take cinematography classes,
they can learn about fundraising, distribution... like all of our [community-based] orgs
have this kind of supplementary programming.” The Austin Filmm Commission also
noted a successful partnership between the Austin Film Society and a union to run a
training and apprenticeship program.



https://kingcountycreative.com/harbor-island-studios/

In Denver and New Orleans, the film offices are focused on working with youth to
generate a robust career pipeline for emerging media makers to skill up and find jobs
locally over their careers. It seems that centralized coordination is a helpful factor
when creating training programs that meet local industry needs, access substantial
funding, and are able to serve historically under-resourced community members.

In order to reach geographically dispersed communities in media deserts across
Colorado, an interviewee from the State Film Commission said their student programs
encompass, “narrative summer workshops [and] career connection panels, where
we bring professionadls virtually into d university, college, or trade school classroom
where they get a chance to interface with students and talk about their career
pathways [in order to] bridge those initial networking opportunities.” We noticed that
a big need in different locations was to have a coordinated workforce development
effort. The New Orleans film office mentioned needing to “get everyone on the same
page.” We heard a similar sentiment from Film SF about the Bay Area’s workforce
development organizations when they said they wanted to host listening sessions
with all the relevant stakeholders. Overall, it seems that responsive, coordinated, and
specific training can bolster industry partnerships.




Further driving the motivation to build up a skilled workforce was the threat of

talent drain. The huge film industry hubs in Los Angeles and New York loom large for
other cities as a constant draw for talented filmmakers and creatives. In Denver, an
interviewee told us that “brain drain and talent drain are the two obstacles that

we face,” and that, “The extreme part-time nature [of media work in Colorado] is a
challenge.” A Chicago interviewee reflected on the reason why people tend to leave
when she mentioned, “We also do see that there is a ceiling that one can reach in
Chicago... Once you're starting to get more dccolades... it becomes harder to be
connected to greater industry because it’s just not present in Chicago... at that

point, people start to leave for New York and LA for industry support.” An interviewee
reflected on the New Orleans Film Society’s goals to keep locals in the area when he
said, “l can name 5 or 6 people off the top of my head who’ve been drawn in other
directions because of work and beccause of the need to fully sustain themselves. So we
understand that completely, but also want to make sure that we’re doing what we can
to continue to support those folks who are wanting to stay in the region and tell [local]
stories.” We face similar challenges in the Bay Area. Offering opportunities for growth
into leadership positions on media productions is difficult. We often see many of our
artists and culture bearers leave for other places in order to find the next level of work
or to film their projects about the Bay Area in other cities and states.




\_

Physical infrastructure was cited as paramount to securing large-scale production in
a variety of cities. Several people we interviewed lauded the success of their physical
space. For example, an interviewee in Chicago said, “We’ve had this very large facility,
Cinespace, I think now for ten years... and that definitely started the momentum.” In
Austin, an interviewee said, “The real game changer was starting Austin Studios.”

Washington is following the examples set in Chicago and Austin. One interviewee
explained, “For a long time in Washington, we haven’t had an accessible, large-scdaile,
soundstage. So, we have public investment in a soundstage now known as Harbor
Island Studios, and that is one of the initiatives we’re moving forward with to recally
help grow the film economy and culture here.”

On the flip side, participants from areas currently lacking physical infrastructure
described it as a clear disadvantage that they're working on addressing. The Cherokee
Nation Film Office told us a story about a significant television series that wanted to
film in the state of Oklahoma but lost most of the project’s filming days to another
state that had larger incentives and a sound stage. At home in the Bay Area, Film SF and
East Bay Film Collective shared that securing a dedicated sound stage is a top priority
to secure the future success of the Bay Area’s film ecosystem.

Ili:]"_ll”"’nllﬁnnﬁn sbnmnialgll
P4
&P

il foan| NANCHNSWAGuns GNNEMGOAGEE 9|

Another benefit of infrastructure was its natural reciprocal benefit to independent
artists. In New Orleans, an interviewee told us about equipment rental businesses, “The
folks who run those businesses love our little independent scene...[and] supporting
local filmmakers...so I always get good deals at the camera houses.”

Insights to Inform Bay Area Film Production Growtl*'l3

age 59 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda

11



Community Collaboration

In describing community development initiatives, many individuals mentioned artist
support opportunities as a means to fill various needs in their local communities. For
example, in Chicago, one interviewee founded Mezcla Media to “elevate over 700
women and non-binary filmmakers of color in Chicago, both in the documentary and
narrative space,” while another launched the Chicago Alliance of Film Festivals program
at FACETS to centralize key resources and build a coalition. During her tenure at NOVAC
in New Orleans, one interviewee launched the third Thursday networking nights for
filmmakers, while another described the New Orleans Film Festival's growth, “I think
also the film festival has grown a lot in the past ten years or so, and it has allowed us
to become a beacon for artists in the region.... It helps to forge connections. It helps
to really provide a sense of community.” In addition, in Austin, an interviewee works
on a mentorship program while another in Austin supports local festival happy hours
through sponsorship. In the Bay Area, Film SF and many San Francisco and East Bay-
based organizations have rallied to co-create social, professional development, and
advocacy-related activities. These opportunities help filmmakers and media makers
feel connected and informed rather than isolated.



https://chicagoscreens.org/

We repeatedly heard the idea of the “right people coming together at the right time.”
Increased momentum in the industry or a galvanizing effort around community-building
projects seems to take shape best when a group of passionate individuals comes together
and builds bridges across different community groups. One interviewee said, “We have
collective momentum going on that has some real gravity around it right now with a whole
lot of people pulling in the same direction. And it feels like our film sector in Washington
is more hopeful now than it has been for a long time.” When reflecting on Austin's history,
an interviewee said that Austin’s Film culture “started with people just getting together!:
Another described the contemporary New Orleans community, “[we are] just really lucky
to have some very talented people - who are either from here or have moved here in the
past decade or so - who have been really influential in doing some of the work: creating
community, inviting other folks in, and mentoring and helping to nurture other artists.”

Succession planning was also raised as an important issue to consider in small film and
media markets. One interviewee said, “It's always going to be a challenge to have talent

in the positions. [People] who are both talented and understand the complexity and the
specificity of the work...” Looking toward the future, one interviewee predicted, “I suspect
that insofar as there will be change to Colorado’s film and media industry going forward,
it’ll be a combination of grassroots organizing, people coming together in numbers, and
being able to speak with one voice as to what the needs are.” These responses relate to the
importance of investing in leadership and sustainability.




All the people we spoke to relayed the importance of being passionate about the local
media industry and supporting local artists. An interviewee in Oklahoma City made it

clear that bringing artists, and opportunities back home was her central motivation. An
interviewee reflected on her experience in New Orleans when she said, “I felt strongly that
a community media center that’s rooted in social justice is actually a thing that needs to
exist in itself” Similarly, an interviewee said this about his motivation to generate growth
in Colorado: ”For me, artists being able to live and work in the places they know and love,
benefits the artists, the work, the place, and the community.” This is a sentiment we see
reflected back in the Bay Area, especially in cities like Oakland that are in the early stages
of investing in local media arts and culture in an increasingly formalized way, motivated by
passionate artists' desire to work at home and tell local stories.

In addition to the individuals that make up fruitful communities, interviewees also lauded
their cities as unique filming locations. Many respondents highlighted their cities' cultural
elements as a draw for talented individuals, big productions, and independent work. In
some places, we heard about an organically collaborative environment where people are
able to pitch their work to each other, share job opportunities and resources openly, and
find interpersonal connectivity and mentorship. An interviewee from the New Orleans film
office shared, “Our city is an ecsy sell because of who we are. The deep cultural roots that
we have in terms of music, and the arts, and the diversity of our city on so many levels, but
primarily [it's] the architecture of the city, the design of the city, and the livability of our city.”
This is also something we see in the Bay Area. Film SF shared that their pitches to potential
productions often highlight San Francisco as a cinematic and culturally dynamic city with
easy access to a variety of landscapes.

Conclusion

We learned a great deal from the seventeen people who generously shared their time and
expertise on growing a thriving film and media sector in the Bay Area. The “three-legged
stool” of incentives, workforce, and infrastructure is essential to creating a fruitful production
economy for commercial and independent storytelling. To sustain large productions and a
healthy independent media landscape attractive incentives, a skilled and readily available
workforce, and physical/technical space for production are needed. We know that bolstering
any of these three factors requires community buy-in from local and state legislators. In
addition, we shouldn’t underestimate the desirability of shooting a production in a location
like New Orleans or the Bay Area for aesthetic and cultural reasons.

We recognize NOW as the moment when “the right people are coming together” in the Bay
Area. We have increasing support and engagement from government agencies,
community-based organizations, independent artists, and local studios. Now is the time for
strategic planning, educating elected officials, increased coordination, and securing capital
investment. Growing the Bay Area film and media sector requires sustained collective effort.




- Appendix A

Interview Participants

We are so grateful to all the individuals who contributed their time, expertise, and insights,
which made this study possible.

California:
Manijeh Fata, Film SF

Sofia Alicastro, Film SF

Colorado:

Arielle Brachfeld, Colorado Office of Film, TV and Media Brian R. Lewandowski, Leeds
School of Business.

John Van Wyck, Cine Fe

lllinois:
Colette Ghunim, Mezcla Media Collective Karen Cardarelli, FACETS

Louisiana:
Carroll Morton, Film New Orleans

Clint Bowie, New Orleans Film Society Darcy McKinnon, Gusto & Formerly NOVAC

Oklahoma:
Jill Simpson, OKC Film & Creative

Tava Sofsky, Cherokee Filmm Commission

Texas:

Brian Gannon, Austin Film Commission Rebecca Campbell, Austin Film Society

Washington:

Amy Lillard, Washington Filmworks & Whip-smart Kate Becker, Creative Economy Director
King County Vee Hua, Arts Administrator & Journalist




- Appendix B

Interview Protocol

Introductions from Everyone

Set context for the study: Over the past few decades, focused initiatives in several cities
across the US have sought to strengthen local film production. The nature of these initiatives
has varied significantly, as have the strategies that they have pursued. In order to inform the
Bay Area's film ecosystem as well as other sector-wide initiatives in the region, we aim to gain
a better understanding of the initiatives that have been launched elsewhere, the strategies that
have proven most effective, and how their impact on local filmmakers have been assessed.

To accomplish this, we are speaking with local leaders in various cities across the US. We plan
to publish a report that includes case studies of 5-7 cities. We are thrilled to be talking to you
today and look forward to hearing more about your experience in the [city] media sector.

If there's anything you'd like to share confidentially just let me know and I'll take your comment
off the record.

Does that all sound okay to you? Do you have any other questions about the project? If so, are
you okay with us recording the call for reference later?

Core Questions:

1. Can you tell us about yourself and the work you do in the media-making field?
2. How would you describe the landscape of your local industry?
a. What's the balance between independent mediamaking and commercial work?

3. In your opinion, what's the biggest contributing factor to your region’s growth in the medlia
sector?

a. What prompted this growth?

b. Is there a person or specific group that's behind this force?

c. Are there any specific productions that were catalysts for your local industry?
d. Is the catalyst for growth an ongoing project? Or did it happen only once?

i. If it happened in the past: did something previous happen that was helpful? Are
there efforts to iterate on it in the future?




Secondary Questions:

4. What kind of data is available on your creative industry?
a. Are there any data collection efforts going on?
5. What's the biggest challenge for media makers in your city?
6. What kind of workforce development interventions does your city deploy?
a. What prompted the,?
b. Are they effective? How do you know that?
c. Are there any barriers?
d. What are the outcomes?
7. What kind of community development activities happen in your city?
a. What prompted them?
b. Are they effective? How do you know that?
c. Are there any barriers?

d. What are the outcomes?

Additional questions based on location:

8. What support does the local govt provide?
a. Are there tax incentives?
b. Any other benefits like city-funded security for production spaces?
9. What support does the state govt provide?
a. Are there tax incentives?
b. Any other benefits like city-funded security for production spaces?
10. What support do local nonprofits provide to the community?
a. Do these organizations work independently or as a coalition of resources?
b. What else do you need from them?
11. How do all of these factors intersect?

12. What's the biggest need for you right now? What could be done/is being done to
improve this workforce sector in your area?




- Appendix C

Considerations for Future Research

Potential questions for a future iteration of the survey that could provide more insight into
the digital media/animation segment of the Bay Area film and media industry, provided by
one of our advisory committee members:

1. What has changed in your sense of work stability over the last few years?
What are the factors that impact that change?

2. What kinds of projects/training will help you adapt your skill set to industry
changes?

3. What kind of support would be helpful on a studio level to create a vibrant
and resilient work environment in a changing technical landscape?

4. What could facilitate the development of new films/games at your studio?
Among your community?

5. Do you see a potential for tax credits to help foster new game [ animation
studios that will employ people?

6. How are you seeking to adapt to the transforming creative/technical
landscape in the face of Al integration across the media production landscape?




BAVC
MEDIA

Page 67 of 67 CAC 6-13-24 Agenda



	CAC Agenda 6.13.2024
	CAC DRAFT Minutes 4 15 24_Revised
	Cult Aff Film Report
	Oakland Incentive Final Report 2024-04-30
	BAVC_Field-Study



